3)

ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY THE ECONGMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FOR ERIE COLNTY
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORP.
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORP.

Joint Governance Committee Meeting
March 14, 2022 at 10:00 a.m.
Via Conference Call & Livestreaming

Agenda
1. Approval of Minutes — February 25, 2022 (Action) (Pages 2-3)
2. 2021 PAAA Annual Report (Action) (Pages 4-57)
3. Results of ECIDA’s 2021 Performance Measures (Action) (Pages 58-71)

4. ECIDA Mission Statement & 2022 Performance Measures (Action) (Pages 72-80)

5. 2021 Board of Directors Evaluation/Survey (Action) (Pages 81-85)
6. Governance Committee 2021 Self-Evaluation (Action) (Pages 86-90)

7. Adoption of ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Policies
a. Fee Structure Policy (For ECIDA & ILDC Only) (Action) (Page 91)

8. Re-Adoption of ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Policies (Action Items)

Board Member Compensation, Reimbursement & Attendance Policy (Page 92)

. Code of Ethics & Conflict of Interest Policy (Pages 93-98)

Defense & Indemnification Policy (Page 99)

. ECIDA Employee Compensation Program (Pages 100-101)

Governance Committee Charter (Pages 102-104)

Procurement Policy (Pages 105-109)

Property Disposition Guidelines Pages 110-116)

Real Property Acquisition Policy (Pages 117-118)

Sexual Harassment Policy (Pages 119-127)

Statement of Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of Directors (Pages 128-130)
Statement of the Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members (Page 131)
Travel, Conferences, Meals & Entertainment Policy (Pages 132-137)

m. Whistleblower Policy and Procedures (Pages 138-140)

mETS R MO AL o op

9. PARIS Report Update (informational)
10. Board Member PAAA Training Update (informational)
11. Adjourn

95 Perry Street, Suite 403 » Buffalo, New York 14203 « ph. 716.856.6525 » fx. 716.856.6754 « www.ecidany.com



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
JOINT GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE OF THE
ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (ECIDA),
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT CORP. (RDC)
AND
BUFFALO & ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORP. (ILDC)

DATE: February 22, 2022

LIVE STREAMED: This meeting is being live-streamed and made accessible on the Agency’s
website at www.ecidany.com.

PRESENT: Howard Johnson, Tyra Johnson, Brenda W. McDuffie, Kenneth A. Schoetz,
and Maria Whyte

EXCUSED: David J. State

OTHERS PRESENT: John Cappellino, President/CEO; Mollie Profic, Chief Financial Officer;
Beth O’Keefe, Vice President of Operations; Atiqga Abidi, Assistant
Treasurer, Grant Lesswing, Director of Business Development; Gerald
Manhard, Chief Financial Officer; Brian Krygier, Director of Information
Technology; Carrie Hocieniec, Operations Assistant; Lori Szewczyk,
Director of Grants and Pietra G. Zaffram, Esq., General Counsel/Harris
Beach PLLC

GUESTS: Lisa Hicks on behalf of the City of Buffalo

There being a quorum present at 10:04 a.m., the Meeting of the Members of the Joint Governance
Committee of the Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation (RDC) and the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC) was called to order by its Chair, Ms. McDuffie.

MINUTES

The January 25, 2022 minutes of the joint meeting of the Governance Committee of the ECIDA,
RDC and ILDC were presented. Upon motion made by Ms. Johnson and seconded by Mr. Schoetz, the
approval of the January 25, 2022 meeting minutes was unanimously carried.

REVIEW “ECIDA 2021 MISSION STATEMENT & PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS-
RESULTS” AND REVIEW “ECIDA 2022 MISSION STATEMENT & PERFORMANCE
MEASUREMENTS-GOALS”

. Ms. O’Keefe reviewed the 2021 performance measures report.
Ms. O’Keefe noted that all comments and suggestions have been incorporated into the Mission
Statement and Performance Measures. Also a change was made to the bond activity. Three of five grants
have been submitted and approved.



Mr. Cappellino advised that with regard to MBE/WBE, the Agency had hoped to have more
procurement in 2021 but the Agency did increase spending by 50% and is doing business with an MBE

office supply company.

He also advised that Objectives SA, 5B, 5D and 5E were pending and are now complete.
Objective 5C will be restated to more clearly reflect results. -

Ms. O’Keefe reviewed the 2022 performance measures and Mission Statement.

Mr. Cappellino noted that with respect to Objective 1B, with the EDA having released their
interest in the revolving loan funds, he meet with staff regarding rolling out new tools and products to
help penetrate parts of market that are under served.

Mr. Cappellino reviewed Objective 2F metrics and support of creation of jobs at all salary levels
and discussed living wage calculations for Erie County, New York.

Ms. Whyte stated it made sense that the Agency does typically induce projects that have jobs
paying a living wage. Ms. Whyte queried if the Agency should consider adding more to the metric.

Mr. Cappellino noted that the Agency did make a change in reporting to categorize salary levels
and could look at a further breakdown.

Ms. McDuffie stated that a complicating factor is that we don’t have household data.

Ms. Johnson stated she appreciated the work of staff to present revised data and supporting
research.

Ms. O’Keefe updated members on Objective 2H to include regionally strategic land development
initiatives.

Ms. O’Keefe noted Objectives SA-SF remain the same with 100% compliance.

Mr. Cappellino stated the measures and mission statements are reported to ABO each year as part
of the Agency’s state filing.

Ms. Whyte moved and Ms. Johnson seconded to accept and recommend the 2021 Performance
Measures Report and the 2022 Performance Measurers Report be forwarded to the members of the
ECIDA, ILDC and RDC Board for approval. Ms. McDuffie called for the vote and the motion was then
unanimously approved.

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 10:34 a.m.

Dated: February 22, 2022

Gerald Manhard, Assistant Secretary






Description of the Agency:

The Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) is a public benefit corporation
that provides tax incentives, financing programs, export assistance, land development and
other economic development services to the City of Buffalo and Erie County, New York.

The ECIDA has two other affiliated not-for-profit organizations as follows:
1) Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC). This is a

lending corporation that administers two revolving loan funds. The first was
capitalized by an Economic Development AdA

:-Rehef and Economic Security
fgd ral interest in the original

Buffalo and Erie County Indust .al ’Land Development ig)poratlon (ILDC).
The ILDC takes ownership of d1s‘ ed properties in ord vqfé&g%emedlate and
return them to productlve use. The IL D mctured in 20740 allow it to

“of Brie County to assist Yoeal not-for-
S at a lower cost On behalf of

Fund, a mlcro-loan program ﬁmded ‘ﬁ*g C'
Grant sourcesf ‘ p “‘*: \

g .. / LN '\ ;1 / 5 '!?“ .
These corporatiogs are re?}e;l since they axe managea‘ib? the same personnel. The
"‘f“"“‘-e the saﬁaé Board oectors as their oversight body. The ILDC

Operations an(‘l"aeeémplishments

Financial Reports

Mission Statement & Measurements

Bonds and notes outstanding

Compensation (for those earning $100,000 +)

Projects undertaken during the year

Property Report

Code of Ethics

An assessment of internal control structure and effectiveness
0 Legislation that forms the statutory basis of the authority

’—‘\°?°.\'9\5-":'“’:”!"!"

2



11. Board structure

12. By-Laws

13. Listing of material changes in operations and programs

14. Four-year Financial Plan

15. Board Performance Evaluations

16. Assets/Services bought or sold without competitive bidding
17. Description of material pending litigation

In compliance with the Public Authorities Law, the following required information is
presented for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021. .

1. Operations & Accomplishments:

2. Financial Reports:

i) Audited Financial Statements: NE
The audited ﬁnanc1al statemen\rs_ f@r the ECIDA

The financial stateméfits are. audrted bn ‘an annuai hams by 1 ependent auditors, Freed
Maxick CPAs, P -L-a.»lnthéirgc@lmon, the{iﬁaneigl sta‘t eﬁts present fairly, in all material

Gié
=

and the changes m‘qﬁi .assets hne
with accountmg prmmpais,;g‘

‘agﬁéhates age re01p1ents\6f various pass-through Federal, State and
'\ { programs that are utifiged for land development, loan, and other economic
developrik etails ofx‘t‘he}vanous grants are outlined in the notes to the
audited fin

primarily upon adminiStrative fees charged to those busmesses that utilize its products
and services.

iii) Operating & Financial Risks:
The following outline some of the operating and financial risks that impact the ECIDA
and its affiliates:

e New York State Legislation — The New York State Legislature can impose
various restrictions on the ability of Industrial Development Agencies to provide
tax incentives which could significantly impact the revenue of the ECIDA.

3



® Collectability of loans receivable — The RDC and ILDC operate various revolving
loan programs and as such their financial results are impacted by the collectability
of the related loans.

e Litigation — To provide various tax incentives or grants, the ECIDA takes a
leasehold or ownership interest in various properties and is ofien brought into
various lawsuits that could impact the ECIDA’s financial results.

¢ Regulations — The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC are subject to various regulations
including those imposed by the NYS Authorities Budget Office and the Federal
Economic Development Administration. These regulations may increase the cost
of compliance or impact the financial position of the-Agency.

e Local economic conditions — Since the ECIDA 4 ies upon fees generated from
various projects that it assists, a reduction il number and/or size of those
projects would significantly impact the Ag Tie

iv) Current bond ratings: N
The ECIDA and ILDC act as conduits for tax-exr
profit and other eligible borrow s
issue bonds on their own behalf ;‘h
agencies.

ﬁdu01 angements as outlined in the
"onts The ECIDA does not have any long-

;E l enefit lanssas
68 plans or p £i*lsdwaiﬁi;

The ECIDA’s M"L ien 'tatfement & Measurements Report for 2021 is included in
Attachment 1. This d men
2021 Board meeting.

4. Schedule of Bonds and Notes Outstanding:

Attachment 2 summarizes the ECIDA’s and ILDC’s bonds and notes outstanding at
December 31, 2021. The indebtedness shown on these schedules is conduit debt and is
not an obligation of the ECIDA, ILDC, Erie County or New York State. Neither the
ECIDA nor the ILDC records the assets or liabilities resulting from completed bond and
note issues in their accounts since their primary function is to facilitate the financing
between the borrowing companies and the bond and note holders.

4



5. Compensation Schedule:

See Attachment 3 for a list of ECIDA employees who had a salary exceeding $100,000
during 2021. Attachment 3A is a summary of benefits provided to those staff as per the
New York State Public Authorities Reporting Information System (PARIS). Biographies
for these individuals are posted on the ECIDA website at http://www.ecidany.com/staff-
directory. Salaries and benefit information for other ECIDA staff are also reported under
the PARIS system.

None of the directors of the ECIDA or its affiliates receiveany compensation for their
services as directors. None of the officers of the E or its affiliates receive any

compensation for their services as officers beyon mpensation as employees.

6. Projects Undertaken by the Corporanoh ﬂﬁ ﬁng 2021:
‘\

Attachment 4 details the tax-exempt bonds | an\tgax abatemcnts that \v;/\
2021. Attachments 4A and 4B detall the loans ﬁlat,werﬁA ;
ILDC, respectively. :

proved during

ge%i gropéi@;holdhgs of the ECIDA
§: ?‘,:pertles in which the ECIDA has

The : Corporatlon s “Code of ‘Ethics 1‘;"’1;osted on the ECIDA’s website at
http: 77www ecldanv comfahout-l?ér wmorate—pohmes

.the Effectiveness of Internal Controls of the ECIDA, RDC

Management s Asse ssment,
ie ECIDA’s website at https://www.ecidany.com/about-us-

and ILDC is posted
corporate-reports.

The ECIDA, RDC and ILDC’s independent auditors have conducted an audit of the
internal control over financial reporting and their report is included in the audited
financial statements posted on the ECIDA’s website at https://www.ecidany.com/about-
us-corporate-reports.

10. Legislation that forms the Statutory Basis of the Authority:

ECIDA



Industrial development agencies (“IDAs”) are formed under Article 18-A of New York
State General Municipal Law, as public benefit corporations. IDAs were created to
actively promote, encourage, attract and develop job and recreational opportunities and
economically-sound commerce and industry in cities, towns, villages and counties
throughout New York State (the “State”). IDAs are empowered-to provide financial
assistance to private entities through tax incentives in order to promote the economic
welfare, prosperity and recreational opportunities for residents of a municipality
(“Benefited Municipality™).

Section 891a of the General Municipal Law outlines the composition of the Erie County
IDA membership and additional powers granted to the ECIDA. A copy of this specific
legislation can be found at the following address:
http://public.leginfo.state.ny.us/LAWSSEAF. cm‘?OUERYTYPE—LAWS+&QUERYDA
TA=$$GMU891-A$$@TXGMUO891- o L
A+&LIST=LAW+&BROWSER=EXPL ORER+&TOKEN=35134270+&TARGET=VIE
w

RDC & [LDC s
The RDC & ILDC are local dexfi“”; Bt

e?ﬁt corporatlons), LDCs are
estabhshed as chantable corporat ng that m”'e« empo to construct, acquire,
i (}Aagyfactunng plants in the

nducted (“Benefited Territory”)
LDCs c%n prowdi‘iﬁnanmal ass‘l‘sfance for the construction,

) ravement ‘maintenance of facilities for others in its
i’@mpow \,tmclude the ability to: (i) disseminate
! nce and 11a.1son services to Federal, State

acquisition, rehabilitati
Beneﬁteﬂw'lzemtory

i{ﬁy real pr;personal property or any interest therein.

A copy of thlS speg.;ﬁc leglslmj;mn can be found at the followmg address

C O 1411 +&LIST LAW+&BROWSER“EXPLORER+&TO
XGET=VIEW

TA=SSNPC14118S(@T:
KEN=35134270+&TA

11. Description of the Authority and its Board Structure:

i) Names of Committees and Committee Members:
The ECIDA and its affiliates operate several committees as outlined on the ECIDA

website at http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-board-committees. Attachment 6 outlines

the committee members.

i) Lists of Board Meetings & Attendance:




A list of the various Board meetings and Board attendance is outlined on Attachment 7.

iii) Description of major authority units, subsidiaries:
The ECIDA and its affiliates do not have any subsidiaries.

iv) Number of Employees:
The ECIDA had 18 full-time employees in 2021.

v) Organizational Chart:
The ECIDA’s organizational chart is posted on the ECIDA’s website at:

hitps://www.ecidany.com/documents/Press Room/Orgamzatmnal%ZOChart%ZO-
%20as%2001%20June%202019.pdf p

12. Bylaws:

The Bylaws for the ECIDA and its affili es are posted on
http://www.ecidany. com/about-us-comorétze- olicies.

2021 for mfrastruc_ i o rede»velop "rqgat of the site. Water and
sewer engine g AW B\ggn during e yw S wafﬁ‘&%@’iiﬁ 000 grant from Erie County,
as well as ShoreligeTrail enhiincements quh s;;pport ﬁ'on‘i‘the NYS Department of State.
Uniland Development: ageed tb purchase a tﬁ@-acre parcel of land for a new construction
commerc,la Warehous' :ulldi 1%2021. Pa(m of Phase II of land acquisition was

\w?sil b ng theitotal acreage owned to approximately

The I"‘!C Jbegan worli\@n the Mg

ILDC’s otlier, iy, in Evans NY. This work is being completed with grant
support from.Nati i ﬂ54 000) and Erie County ($230,000).

The following pr@,%:am /i
pandemic continued d;
e ECIDA’s grant program to assmt businesses negatively impacted by the pandemic
continued through the end of the program in June 2021. These grants reimbursed
small businesses and not-for-profit entities for the cost of acquiring personal
protective equipment and/or installing fixtures to help prevent the spread of
COVID-19. The ECIDA Board allocated a total of $1,000,000 of agency general

funds this program in 2020-2021, and awarded $700,900.

e ECIDA was awarded up to $5 million by the Economic Development
Administration under the federal CARES Act, which was sub-granted to RDC to
establish a new revolving loan fund (RLF). The purpose of this loan fund is to
alleviate sudden and severe economic dislocation caused by the COVID-19

7

10



pandemic, support economic resiliency, and further the long-term economic
adjustment objectives of Erie County. The entire $5 million was lent by the end of
2021.

In 2021 based on the overall performance and successful operation of the EDA (Legacy)
revolving loan fund (RLF) since its inception in 1979, the EDA released its Federal
interest in the RLF. This courtesy was only offered to RLF operators that have operated
satisfactorily for at least seven years beyond the disbursement of grant funds.

ECIDA'’s Board approved updates to the Procurement Pohcy Sexual Harassment Policy,
and Employee Compensation Program in 2021.

14. Four-Year Financial Plan:

“edhducted a Board“Performance
) ithority Budget Office. The surveys
are not subject to disclosure under amg & _},}_r@f the Pu‘;li gOfficers Law.

Attachments 8, and 8B\51“__‘1’rocurer‘ﬁ%t R«eeports thifmre filed under PARIS for the
ECIDA RD irLDC Tesg ectlvely ese reports outline the assets and services
tivie ald‘non-com",. ,t1t1ve bidding for all procurements in.

11



Certification Pursuant to Section 2800(3) of the Public Authorities Law

Pursuant to Section 2800 (3) of the Public Authorities Law, each of the undersigned
officers of Erie County Industrial Development Agency, Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation, and the Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation does hereby certify with respect to the annual financial report
of the Corporation (the “Annual Financial Report”) posted on the ECIDA’s website at
http://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-reports that based on the officer’s
knowledge:

1. The information provided in the Annual Finapé: Teport is accurate, correct and

Fid,

N
2 _\,ould cause the ﬁnan01a1
3.
John Cappellino
President. &
&

12



ECIDA Bonds Attachment #2
ea ¢ P 0 Paid e Bond/Lo =foigle
oe Proje ame Bond Amo Bala e 20 Bala 0 U Ra pe
2591 |M&T Bank Canisius High School $22,250,000 $ 10,820,000 | $ 10,450,000 | § 370,000 |var 1012768 2/1/38
2491 |M&T Bank Hydro-Air Components, Inc. $9,800,000| $ 3,065,000 | $ - |$ 3,065,000 |Var. 1034103 4/1/26
11943KBAS,
11943KBB7,
U.S. Bank Medaille College 2013 11943KBE1,
National Refund of ECIDA 2003 11943KBCS,
10216|Association Bond $18,240,000| $ 14,360,000 |$ 13,700,000 | § 660,000 [fixed 11943KBD3 2/16/35
Zions CPC7068801,
10404 |Bancorporation |Marina Vista $13,300,000| $ 13,139,929 | $ 12,957,964 | § 181,965 |fixed 7916 12/20/37
Niagara Maryland
1062|M&T Bank Development, LLC $2,500,000| $ 610,000 | $ 420,000 | § 190,000 |var 295088FM5 6/1/23
U.S. Bank Related
National Affordable/Elmwood Square 1.846%,
10504 |Association Apartments $8,590,000 $8,590,000| $ 8,590,000 | $ - |Fixed 2038
Joint Schools Construction
10140|M&T Bank Board 2012A Refinancing - | $209,540,000 $113,860,000| $ 95,185,000 | $§ 18,675,000 |var. Go18 5/1/26
Joint Schools Construction
Board 2013 Refund of
10194 |M&T Bank 2009A Bonds $62,540,000/ $ 60,795,000 | $ 60,520,000 | $ 275,000 |var 254 5/1128
Joint Schools Construction
10134|M&T Bank Project - 2011 Bonds $277,875,000/ $ 156,040,000 | $ - | § 156,040,000 |var. G005, Goo6 5/1/32
Board (Refund of 2007A &
2008A bonds) - Series )
10291 |M&T Bank 2015A $236,975,000| $ 179,055,000 | $ 160,470,000 | § 18,585,000 |var. H378 2029
Board-Series 2016A
10342|M&T Bank (Refund of 2009A Bonds) $133,580,000| $ 123,985,000 | $ 115,370,000 | $ 8,615,000 |2.17 2031
New York
Housing Finance (2009 Shoreline Apartments
2360|Agency LLC $9,000,000 $ 1,186,988 |$ 1,143,250 | § 43,738 |0.055 5003| 11/30/41
Huntington Child & Family Services of ERIENYCHLO0Z
1035|National Bank  |Erie County $4,200,000| $ 595,000 | $ 205,000 | § 390,000 |var. ; 5082022935 6/1/22,
Huntington ERIENYPEOPL
1036 |National Bank People, Inc. $13,685,000| $ 180,000 | $ 60,000 | $ 120,000 |.0722; varlE; 5082023104 6/1/122
Bank of New Our Lady of Victory
2516|York Mellon Renaissance Corporation $11,860,000| $ 7,785,000 |$ 7,305,000 | $ 480,000 |0.053 4/1/32
Joint Schoois Construction
Board/City School District of
10621 |M&T Bank the City of Buffalo $109,135,000 $109,135,000/ $ 109,135,000 | $ - |Fixed 2032
$ 803,201,917 | $ 595,511,214 | $ 207,690,703

13



Bond
Amount

ProjectName

ILDC Bonds

Year Start
Balance 2021

Year End

Balance 2021

Principal Paid
2021

Interest

Rate {oan Number

Attachment #2

Bond
Maturity

antaiician Center for Leaming- ,
10111|M&T Bank Series A $9,525,000 $5,832,500 $5,378,333 $454,167 |var. 1034105 2033
Medaille College 2018 Series
10398 |M&T Bank Refunding of 2010 Bonds $9,350,000) $§ 9,255,000 |$ 9,150,000 $105,000 2038
Buffalo Academy of Science 9014559613-
10316|Key Bank Charter School $3,250,000 $1,129,786 | $ - $1,129,786 3.08/000000001 4/30/23
2758|UMB Bank Enterprise Charter School $7,345,000 $6,355,000 | $§ 6,215,000 $140,000 7.5 1032851 2040
i ] Series A - 123350-000
10371|M&T Bank Tapestry Charter School $33,900,000| $33,075,000 | $ 32,625,000 $450,000 Series B - 123351-000 2052
Global Concepts Charter )
10399 | Wilmington Trust |School $6,185,000| $ 5,755,000 | $ 5,525,000 $230,000 |4 & 5% |131876-000 10/1/37
Charter School for Applied '
10375/U.S. Bank Technologies $22,995,000 | $20,335,000 | § 19,355,000 $980,000 220612000 2035
Canisius College of Buffalo,
New York - Refund of 2004- Libor
2005 DASNY Bonds - Series rate:
10296|M&T Bank 2015A $30,760,000 | $21,530,000 | $20,690,000 $840,000 |1.3375 3233822 2038
New York - Refund of 2004- rate:
10296|M&T Bank 2005 DASNY Bonds - Series $16,195,000 | $16,195,000 $16,195,000 $0 |1.4075 3233830 2040
The Bank of New |Orchard Park CCRC, Inc. a/k/a
10290|York Mellon Fox Run $44,490,000 | $38,330,000 | § 36,975,000 $1,355,000 |1-5% 2037
10018|Key Bank 134 High Street, LLC $24,050,000 | $19,773,180 [ $ 19,312,637 $460,543 1.9/2000 19408 2022
10338 |M&T Bank 854 Ellicott Street, LLC $44,328,500 | $42,200,618 | § 41,332,249 $868,369 2.95|99-6641368-3 2051
The Bank of New
10278/ York Mellon Catholic Heatth System $93,800,000 | $81,320,000 | $ 77,245,000 $4,075,000 5 2045
10470|U.S. Bank D'Youville College $48,205,000 | $48,205,000 [ § 47,405,000 $800,000 |Variable 2050
$349,291,084 | $ 337,403,219 $11,887,865

14




ATTACHMENT 3

Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Compensation Schedule
Year Ended: December 31, 2021

The following employees had a base salary greater than $100,000 in 2021:

Performance Payroll
Name Title Salary Compensation Taxes* Benefits Total
John Cappellino President & CEO $ 179,220 - 10,974 44,092 | $ 234,286
Karen Fiala Vice President & Manager, Tax Incentive Products $ 100,576 - 7,830 24715 | § 133,121
Elizabeth O'Keefe Vice President - Operations $ 104,097 - 8,099 21014 | § 133,210
Mollie Profic Vice President & CFO $ 106,426 - 8,278 35349 | § 150,053

* Represents Employer's Share of FICA taxes (Social Security & Medicare) & NYS Unemployment Insurance taxes

15



ATTACHMENT 3A

Annual Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Run Date: 03/04/2022
Status; UNSUBMITTED

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021 Certified Date: N/A

)]
Tm.:m itle _wmﬁqn:oa iPayment For [Club Use of Personal uto ransportation Housing |Spousal / Tuition Multi-Year |None of Other
ackage Unused LeaveMemberships [Corporate Loans AllowanceDependent |Assistance Employment these
Credit Cards ife benefits
nsurance
Poloncarz, Mark Board of X
Directors
IPridgen, Darius Board of X
Directors
Roche, Sr. Denise [Board of X
Directors
Schoetz, Kenneth  |Board of X
Directors !
Vukelic, Paul Board of X
Directors
Wilson, Renee oard of X
Directors
Staff
Name Title [Severance  |Payment For [Club Use of |Personal Auto Transportation Housing [Spousal / Tuition [Multi-Year [None of these|Other
Package Unused Leave Memberships Corporate Loans AllowancelDependent |Assistance Employmentjbenefits
Credit Cards ife
nsurance
Cappellino, John  [President X
& CEO
Fiala, Karen \Vice X
President
&
Manager,
Tax
Incentive
Products
O'Keefe, Elizabeth |Vice P
President
of
[Operations
Profic, Mollie Vice
IPresident
Chief
m.:m:&m_
fiicer

Page 17 of 29

16



Erie County Industrial Development Agency
Projects Undertaken by the Cormporation

Year Ended: December 31, 2021

ATTACHMENT 4

Projected  Net Jobs
Jobs Year - Projectedto  Lease Project Tax Exempt

Company 2 be Created Amount Bond Amount  Date Approved

1 Sumitomo Rubber USA, LLC 1399 0 $ 126,000,000 10/27/2021
2 Thermo Fisher North Expansion 867 60 85,000,000 1/27/2021
3 283 Ship Canal Parkway 76 76 52,284,244 6/23/2021
4 Time Release Properties* 123 20 22,700,000 2/24/2021
5 Coca-Cola Beverages Northeast, Inc. 124 10 22,611,507 9/22/2021
6 Sucro Real Estate, LLC. 50 45 19,000,000 1/27/2021
7 Great Point Studios Buffalo* 17 17 15,984,800 11/17/2021
8 BLD VIl, LLC ' 41 41 14,570,786 4/28/2021
9 Polymer Conversjons 140 15 14,250,000 7/28/2021
10 Calspan Corporation 163 20 13,500,000 1/27/2021
11 Surmet Ceramics Corp. 3 18 11,500,000 3/24/2021
12 Pine Pharmaceutials 119 40 8,615,000 1/27/2021
13 MCG Real Estate Holdings, LLC 0 1 8,258,268 5/26/2021
14 132 Dingens Street, LLC 23 23 7,450,000 7/28/2021
15 Bullis Road Solar 0 0 6,389,343 9/22/2021
16 Walcot Apartments 1 1 3,345,000 9/22/2021
17 Terzo Development 1 1 3,050,000 3/24/2021
18 Skycatcher Holdings, LLC 47 6 2,879,000 9/22/2021
19 George Lewis House Apartments 1 1 2,875,000 9/22/2021
20 72 East Niagara Street, LLC 20 3 2,836,736 1/27/2021
21 Eastman Machine Company 129 3 1,665,000 2/24/2021
22 JSCB Series 2011A and 2011B Refunding Bonds o] 0 X 140,000,000 4/28/2021

Total: 3372 401 $ 444,764,684 § 140,000,000

*Indicates an amendatory project.

17



ATTACHMENT 4A

Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation
Projects Undertaken by the Corporation (Loans)
Year Ended: December 31, 2021

Company Loan Amount Date Closed
1 KSL Diagnostics, Inc. S 1,000,000 7/30/2021
2 Buffalo Film Works, Inc. 250,000 3/26/2021
3 Allied Circuits, LLC ’ 250,000 4/29/2021
4 Radio One Buffalo, LLC 250,000 4/29/2021
5 Amherst Pizza & Ale House, Inc. 250,000 . 5/4/2021
6 AFT Lenox, LLC 250,000 5/6/2021
7 Tundra Transport, LLC 250,000 5/13/2021
8 MainSpring, LLC d/b/a Lakeward Spirits 250,000 5/20/2021
9 Trace Assets Protection Services, LLC 250,000 5/26/2021
10 Tomric Systems, Inc. 250,000 6/21/2021
11 Premium Coffee of WNY, LLC ' ' 250,000 6/23/2021
12 Surianello General Concrete Contractors 250,000 7/27/2021
13 166 Chandler Holdings, LLC 250,000 7/30/2021
14 Buffalo Fermentation, Inc. 250,000 10/8/2021
15 WNY MedicaI'Management, LLC 250,000 ‘7/_15/_202}
16 166 Chandler Holdings, LLC 250,000  7/30/2021
17 Law Office of Jennifer Hurley, LLP 200,000 4/5/2021
18 Capello Salon lll, Inc. 175,000 6/2/2021
19 S & K Kitchens, Inc. dba Kitchen Tune-Up 150,000 7/20/2021
20 KJJ Group, LLC 150,000 8/26/2021
21 MainSpring, LLC d/b/a Lakeward Spirits 150,000  5/20/2021
22 Frank T. Minisci, CPA - 125,000 3/30/2021
23 Buffalo Niagara Weldworks, Inc. 125,000 6/30/2021
24 Bhavani Group, Inc. 100,000 3/30/2021
25 Peterson Heating and Cooling, Inc. 100,000 5/13/2021
26 Rosewood Signs, Inc. 100,000 7/9/2021
27 Kathy's Kid Kare, Inc. 100,000 7/12/2021
28 Mataiji's Inc. 100,000 7/12/2021
29 Tundra Transport, LLC 80,000  5/13/2021
30 Eleven Lights, inc. dba Ballyhoo 75,000 9/2/2021
31 Alexander Dunn dba Underground Gym 60,000 6/11/2021
32 Styles of Man, Inc. 50,000 6/25/2021
33 Divorce Mediation Svcs. of Bflo, LLC 40,000 6/15/2021
Total S 6,630,000

18



ATTACHMENT 48

Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Projects Undertaken by the Corporation (Loans)
Year Ended: December 31, 2021

Company Loan Amount Date Closed

1 Kwilos Farms S 35,000 1/8/2021
2 Cross Roads Bar and Grill 35,000 1/12/2021
3 Fetch! Gourmet Dog Treats LLC 35,000 1/19/2021
4 Corporate Wellness Global Inc. 35,000 1/26/2021
5 Creekside Market 35,000 2/21/2021
6 Saxon Services ‘ 35,000 4/22/2021
7 Lighting Done Right {Mike Montaldi) 35,000 5/19/2021
8 Fit OP, LLC (1) 35,000 6/29/2021
9 Fit EA, LLC (2) 35,000 6/29/2021
10 The GreenerWe 35,000 8/19/2021
11 Lilly Belle Meads LLC 35,000 8/27/2021
12 Arts Cafe Management LLC 35,000 9/24/2021
13 Boca Wood Products LLC 35,000 10/14/2021
14 Bella Publishing 35,000 10/26/2021
15 Off the Wall Sandwhich Co. 35,000 10/26/2021
16 BGM 4 LLC 35,000 11/15/2021
17 L&B Transportation LLC 35,000 11/16/2021
18 Danasons Border Services Inc. 35,000 11/19/2021
19 Esthetic Solutions 35,000 12/9/2021
20 Destination X Travel 35,000 12/13/2021

21 Amy Lynn’s Dance Studio 30,000 8/2/2021
22 Real Straw LLC 30,000 10/5/2021

Total § 760,000

19



Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Property Report

Year Ended: December 31, 2021

Table 1. The following is a listing of ali real property owned by the ECIDA and its affiliates at December 31, 2021.

Estimated
FMV of
Owner Address and Location of Property Full Description of Property Property*
Gateway Trade Center - N.W. Hamburg Turnpike, Lackawanna,

ECIDA NY 14218 Commercial warehouse $ 1,140,000
ECIDA 143 Genesee Street, Buffalo, NY 14203 12,803 square foot office facility 1,800,000
ILDC 3445 River Road, Tonawanda, NY 14150 Vacant land 20,000
ILbC 1526 Eden Evans Center Road, Evans, NY 14006 154.84 acres of land w/4 commercial buildings 543,506
ILDC Eden Evans Center Road, Evans, NY 14006 79.7 acres of vacant land 160,000
ILDC {2303 Hamburg Tumpike, Lackawanna, NY 14218 161.18 acres of vacant land w/19,368 s.f. building $ 1,772,696

Table 2. The following is a listing of personal property (with a fair market value ("FMV") in excess of $5,000) and all real property that was disposed of during 2021,

ATTACHMENT 5

Estimated
Fav+ ) )
Owner Address and Location of Property Full Description of Property of Property | Name & Address of Purchaser | Date of Sale | Price Received
BLD VII, LLC
100 Corporate Parkway, Suite 500
ILDC Part of 2303 Hamburg Tumpike, Lackawanna, NY 14218 8.36 acres of vacant land $ 183,920 Amherst, NY 14226 10/6/2021 $209,000
Town of Evans
8787 Erie Road
ILDC Part of 1526 Eden Evans Center Road, Evans, NY 14006 1.85 acres of vacant land $ 6,494 Angola, NY 14006 7/20/2021 $1
Table 3. The following is a listing of all real property that was acquired during 2021.
Estimated
FMV* Date of Price Paid by
Owner Address and Location of Property Full Description of Property of Property Name & Address of Seller Purchase iLDC
, 2303 Hamburg Tumpike
ILDC Part of 2303 Hamburg Tumpike, Lackawanna, NY 14218 31.58 acres of vacant land (Parcels II-5, -6 and l-7) | $ 694,760 Lackawanna, NY 14218 8/25/2021 $473,700

Please note that the above listing excludes the hundreds of
The properties presented are those where the ECIDA has

* Based on assessed value (adjusted for tax equalization rate if applicable) or appraisal, if available.

praperties in which the ECIDA has technical title in order to convey certain tax or other benefits.
“real” beneficial ownership.

20



(As of 12/31/21)

Key: E= ECIDA, R=RDC, I=ILDC

Attachment #6

Name Executive Governance | Compensation | Finance | Nominating Policy | Loan Loan
& Audit Write-Off
Denise Abbott ER ER
April Baskin* ER
Penny Beckwith* ERI ERI
Diane Benczkowski ERI
Mark Blue ERI ER
ﬂ«\o: Brown ER ER
Johanna Coleman* ER
Allison DeHonney* ERI
Colleen Dipirro* ER
Joseph Emminger ER ER
Dottie Gallagher ERI
Rebecca Gandour* ER
Howard Johnson ER| ERI
Tyra Johnson-Hux ERI ERI
Richard Krebs* ER
Brian Kulpa ERI
Nancy LaTulip* ER
Richard Lipsitz ER ERI ER
Brenda McDuffie ER ERI ER
David McKinley* ER
Glenn Nellis ER ER! ER
Mark Poloncarz ER " ERI ERI
Darius Pridgen ER ERI
Denise Roche ERI
Kenneth Schoetz ERI ERI ERI
| Laura Smith* ER
David State* ERI ER

21



ECIDA/RDC/ILDC Board Committees Attachment #6
(As of 12/31/21)
Key: E= ECIDA, R=RDC, I=ILDC
Executive Governance | Compensation | Finance Nominating | Policy | Loan Loan
& Audit Write-Off
Lavon Stephens* ER
Michael Szukala* ERI
Michael Taylor* ER
Paul Vukelic E ERI ER
Maria Whyte* ERI ER
Renee Wilson ERI
William Witzleben* ERI. ERI
Royce Woods* ER

* Non-Board members

22



2021 ECIDA AND AFFILIATES BOARD MEMBER MEETING LIST

ot

X = ATTENDED

Attachment #7

T

N

Hon. Diane Benczkowski

Rev. Mark Blue

x oIx Ix

Hon. Byron Brown

James Doherty

Hon. Joseph Emminger

Dottie Gallagher

Howard Johnson

Tyra Johnson

Hon. Brian Kulpa

Richard Lipsitz

Brenda McDuffie

Hon. Glenn Nellis

oM o Ix x| »x [x |x

E

Hon. Mark Poloncarz

oo [ x |x |x |mx

x| oIx

x|k Ix [x | |[x [

Rev. Darius Pridgen

Sr. Denise Roche:

x

Kenneth Schoetz

o oIx I X X |x

Paul Vukelic

Ko [x I Id |x [x Ix [x [x |

X O |5 | [ [ [ |x |x

Renee Wilson

X I | [x |x

bbott

Denise Al

Diane Benczkowski

Rev. Mark Blue

Hon. Byron Brown

James Doherty

Hon. Joseph Emminger

Dottie Gallagher

23



2021 ECIDA AND AFFILIATES BOARD MEMBER MEETING LIST

X = ATTENDED

Attachment #7

Howard Johnson

Tyra Johnson

Hon. Brian Kulpa

Richard Lipsitz

Brenda McDuffie

Hon. Glenn Nellis

X |x [ »x x|

Hon. Mark Poloncarz

X oIx [x | |x |

XX o1x [ [ |x |x

Rev. Darius Pridgen

Sr. Denise Roche

Kenneth Schoetz

Paul Vukelic

oI Ix | Ix [ | [ |x

Renee Wilson

.

3

Hon. April Baskin

Hon. Byron Brown

Hon. Howard Johnson

Richard Lipsitz

Hon. Mark Poloncarz

Maria Whyte

Ko x | |

E
x IxX |Ix | x

oIk |m |

24



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

ATTACHMENT 8

Run Date: 02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

Question Response URL (if Applicable)
1. Does the Authority have procurement guidelines? Yes hitps://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-policies
2. Are the procurement guidelines reviewed annually, amended if needed, and approved by the Board? Yes
3 Does the Authority allow for exceptions to the procurement guidelines? No
4, Does the Authority assign credit cards to employees for travel and/or business purchases? No
5. Does the Authority require prospective bidders to sign a non-collusion agreement? Yes
6. Does the Authority incorporate a summary of its procurement policies and prohibitions in its solicitation of Yes

propesals, bid documents, or specifications for procurement contracts?
7. Did the Authority designate a person or persons to serve as the authorized contact on a specific procurement, in | Yes

accordance with Section 139-j(2)(a) of the State Finance Law, "The Procurement Lobbying Act"?
8. Did the Authority determine that a vendor had impermissible contact during a procurement or attempted to No

ﬁ_:w:om the procurement during the reporting period, in accordance with Section 139-j(10) of the State Finance

W7

8a. If Yes, was a record made of this impermissible contact?
9. Does the Authority have a process to review and investigate allegations of impermissible contact during a Yes

procurement, and to impose sanctions in instances where violations have occurred, in accordance with Section
138-j(9) of the State Finance Law?

Page 1 of 20

25



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

1. Vendor Name Automated Business Forms Address Line1 PO Box 603
Type of Procurement Commodities/Supplies Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City EAST AMHERST
Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14051

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount Province/Region

Amount Expended For $5,291.67 Country United States
Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Employee business cards, branded letterhead/envelopes
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

2, Vendor Name

Blue Cross/Blue Shield of WNY Address Line1 257 W Genesee Street”
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2 Suite 100
Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City BUFFALO
Award Date 1/1/2021 State NY
End Date 12/31/2021 Postal Code 14202
Fair Market Value Plus 4
Amount $193,290.60 Province/Region
Amount Expended For $193,290.60 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Health insurance for employees.

Page 2 of 20

26



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

3. Vendor Name Buffalo Business First Address Line1 465 Main Street
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BUFFALO
Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14203

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount

Province/Region

Amount Expended For
Fiscal Year

$24,045.00

Country

United States

Explain why the Fair Procurement Targeted advertising campaigns in local weekly business publication.
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

4, Vendor Name Buffalo Southern Railroad Address Line1 8600 Depot Street

Type of Procurement Commodities/Supplies Address Line2

Award Process Nan Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City EDEN

Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14057

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount Province/Reglon

Amount Expended For $45,453.80 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Materials reimbursement for the railroad crossing replacement project.
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

Page 3 of 20

27



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

5. ‘Vendor Name C&S Engineers Address Line1 141 Elm Street, Suite 100
Type of Procurement Consulting Services Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City BUFFALO

Award Date 3/8/2021 State NY

End Date 6/30/2022 Postal Code 14203

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $215,987.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $119,058.05 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Planning, environmental, financial and design services for public sanitary
sewer and water line extensions at former Bethlehem Steel site,

6. Vendor Name Challenger Community News Address Linet PO Box 474
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BUFFALO
Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14209

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount Province/Region

Amount Expended For
Fiscal Year

$6,099.00

Country

United States

Explain why the Fair
Market Value Is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Public nofices and bid advertisements in local publication

Page 4 of 20

28



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency Run Date: 02/28/2022

Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

7. Vendor Name Chubb & Son, a Division of Federal Insurance Company Address Line1 P.O. Box 382001
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City PITTSBURGH
Award Date 12/29/2020 State PA

End Date 12/31/2021 Postal Code 15250

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount mﬂﬁ.m.\m.oo Province/Region

Amount Expended For $17,578.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Excess liability and excess crime insurance.

8. Vendor Name

Construction Trades Staffing, Inc.

Address Line1

PO Box 1108

Type of Procurement

Staffing Services

Address Line2

3959 N. Buffalo Road

Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City ORCHARD PARK
Award Date 5/18/2021 State NY

End Date Postal Code 14127

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $14,400.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $14,400.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Direct hire placement fee.

Page 5 of 20

29



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

9, Vendor Name

Copier Fax Business Technologies, Inc.

Address Line1

465 Ellicott Street

Type of Procurement

Commodities/Supplies

Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City BUFFALO
Award Date 12/14/2018 State NY

End Date 12/14/2023 Postal Code 14203

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $9,424.57 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $9,424.57 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

DocuWare annual maintenance charges ($6,308.36), and copier charges
($3,116.21).

10. Vendor Name Dawn Boudreau Address Line1 363 Avon Road
Type of Procurement Consulting Services Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City TONAWANDA
Award Date 2/1/2021 State NY

End Date 12/31/2021 Postal Code 14150

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $5,210.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $5,210.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Consulting services related to compliance

Page 6 of 20

30



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date:

Status:

02/28/2022
UNSUBMITTED

Certified Date : N/A

1. Vendor Name Delage Landen Financial Services, Inc. Address Line1 PO Box 41602
Type of Procurement Technology - Hardware Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City PHILADELPHIA
Award Date 12/14/2018 State PA

End Date 12/14/2023 Postal Code 19101

Fair Market Vaiue Plus 4

Amount $5,626.44 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $5,626.44 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Lease for office copiers.
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

12, Vendor Name Empire State Development Address Line1 633 Third Avenue
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City NEW YORK

Award Date 3/7/2008 State NY

End Date 9/30/2023 Postal Code 10017

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount "$190,585.71 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $190,585.71 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Rent for offices at 95 Perry Street.
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

Page 7 of 20

31



PR g et in v gy S e

Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date:
Status:

02/28/2022
UNSUBMITTED

Certified Date : N/A

13. Vendor Name Fireman's Fund Insurance Companies Address Line1 P.O. Box 3914
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City CAROL STREAM
Award Date 12/31/2020 State IL

End Date 12/31/2021 Postal Code 60132

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $15,239.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $15,239.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Excess liability insurance policy.

14. Vendor Name

Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C.

Address Linet

424 Main Street, Suite 800

Type of Procurement

Financial Services

Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City BUFFALQ
Award Date 9/27/2017 State NY

End Date 5/16/2022 Postal Code 14202

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $27,300.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $27,300.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Audit services.

Page 8 of 20

32



el - TR=S e SR N O T e B

Pracurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date:
Status:

02/28/2022
UNSUBMITTED

Certified Date : N/A

15. Vendor Name Guardian Address Line1 10 Hudson Yards
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City NEW YORK
Award Date 1/1/2021 State NY

End Date 12/31/2021 Postal Code 10001

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $17,451.38 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $17,451.58 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Dental insurance for ECIDA employees.
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

16. Vendor Name Harris Beach, PLLC Address Line1 Larkin at Exchange

Type of Procurement Legal Services Address Line2 726 Exchange Street, Suite 1000
Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City BUFFALO

Award Date 1/12/2009 State NY

End Date 5/1/2022 Postal Code 14210

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $33,316.06 Province/Reglon

Amount Expended For $33,316.06 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Legal services.

Page 9 of 20

33



! Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

Fiscal Year

17. Vendor Name Hurwitz & Fine, P.C. Address Line1 1300 Liberty Building
Type of Procurement Legal Services Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City BUFFALO

Award Date 5/1/2019 State NY

End Date 5/1/2022 Postal Code 14202

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $11,971.04 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $11,971.04 Country United States

than the Amount

-Explain why the Fair Procurement Legal services related to loans on behalf of related entity. Services provided
Market Value is Less Description under active contract and were reimbursed.

than the Amount

18. Vendor Name Innovative Cloud Solutions, LLC Address Line1 165 Montgomery Road

Type of Procurement Technology - Consulting/Development or Support Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City ALTAMONTE SPRINGS

Award Date State FL

End Date Postal Code 32714

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount ) Province/Region

Amount Expended For $9,880.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Support for implementation of general ledger software
Market Value is Less Description

Page 10 of 20

34



aczrtieegy bewd

. Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

19. Vendor Name Invest Buffalo Niagara Address Line1 257 W. Genesee Street
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2 . Suite 600

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BUFFALO

Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14202

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount Province/Region '
Amount Expended For $75,000.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Membership investment
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount -

20. Vendor Name Key Resource Group Address Linet 135 Delaware Avenue, Suite 407
Type of Procurement Staffing Services Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City BUFFALO

Award Date 11/16/2020 State NY

End Date 1/25/2021 Postal Code 14202

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $9,120.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $9,120.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Direct hire placement fee
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

Page 11 of 20

35



gy e ey

TLEL T

Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date:
Status:
Certified Date : N/A

02/28/2022

UNSUBMITTED

21, Vendor Name Lawley Address Line1 361 Delaware Avenue
Type of Procurement Other Professional Services Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City BUFFALO

Award Date 12/31/2019 State NY

End Date 12/31/2020 Postal Code 14202

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $5,687.58 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $5,687.58 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Cyber Liability insurance, Excess Lines Fees
Market Value is Less

than the Amount

Description

22, Vendor Name

Layer 3 Technologies

Address Line1

1645 Lyell Avenue

Type of Procurement

Technology - Software

Address Line2

Award Process

Purchased Under State Contract City ROCHESTER
Award Date State NY
End Date Postal Code 14606
Fair Market Value Plus 4
Amount Province/Region
Amount Expended For $6,143.97 Country United States
Fiscal Year
Explain why the Fair Procurement IT services subscription, multi-factor authentication software
Market Value is Less Description
than the Amount

Page 12 of 20

36



PRl Saalby

Procurement Report for Erie County Indusirial Development Agency

: Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: -02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

23. Vendor Name

MRB Group

Address Line1

145 Culver Road, Suite 160

Type of Procurement

Consulting Services

Address Line2

Fiscal Year

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City ROCHESTER
Award Date 10/4/2021 State NY

End Date 9/30/2022 Postal Code 14620

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $85,000.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $21,250.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Economic development consulting/planning services for update of
Market Value is Less Description Camprehensive Economic Development Strategy.
than the Amount

24, Vendor Name MRI Contract Staffing, Inc. Address Line1 6790 Main Street, Suite 160

Type of Procurement Staffing Services Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City WILLIAMSVILLE

Award Date 211712021 State NY

End Date 11/19/2021 Postal Code 14221

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $12,011.10 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $12,011.10 Country United States

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Temporary staffing services through Strauss Executive Search Group
Consultants in connection with COVID-19 grant award from EDA on behaif
of related entity. Amounts were reimbursed.

Page 13 of 20

37



Pracurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/28/2022 _
Status: UNSUBMITTED ,
Certified Date : N/A

Fiscal Year

25. Vendor Name Management Recruiters of Williamsville Address Line1 6790 Main Street, Suite 160
Type of Procurement Staffing Services Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City WILLIAMSVILLE

Award Date - 8/10/2021 . State NY

End Date 11/15/2021 Postal Code 14221

Fair Market Value : Plus 4

Amount $15,329.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $15,329.00 Country United States

Explain why the Falr
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Direct hire placement fee

Fiscal Year

26. Vendor Name Metrapolitan Life Insurance Company Address Line1 200 Park Avenue
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City NEW YORK
Award Date 5/1/2020 State NY

End Date 4/30/2022 Postal Code 10166

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $9,288.67 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $9,288.67 Country United States

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Group term life insurance, long-term disability insurance and accidental
death insurance for employees

Page 14 of 20

38



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

27. Vendor Name Microsoft Address Line1 One Microsoft Way
Type of Procurement Technology - Hardware Address Line2

Award Process Autharity Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City REDMOND
Award Date 2/16/2021 State WA

End Date Postal Code 98052

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $33,843.73 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $33,843.73 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Employee laptops and docking stations.

28. Vendor Name NYSIF Workers' Compensation Address Line1 PO Box 5238

Type of Procurement Other Professional Services Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City NEW YORK

Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 10008

Fair Market Value Plus 4 1:
Amount Province/Reglon

Amount Expended For $8,278.03 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value Is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Workers comp insurance premiums 12/29/20-12/29/21 and 12/29/21-

12/29/22

Page 15 of 20

39



2

et b L R e €

Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

29, Vendor Name New York State Economic Development Council (NYSEDC) Address Line1 111 Washington Avenue
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2 4th Floor

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City ALBANY

Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 12210

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount Province/Region

Amount Expended For $14,040.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Sponsorships for events ($9,000), membership dues ($2,000), event
Market Value is Less Description registrations ($3,040.00)

than the Amount

30. Vendor Name Otesaga Resort Hotel Address Line1 80 Lake Street
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City COOPERSTOWN
Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 13326

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount , Province/Region

Amount Expended For $6,305.20 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

NYS EDC conference accommodations

Page 16 of 20

40



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

31. Vendor Name Philadelphia Insurance Companies Address Line1 P.O. Box 70251
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City PHILADELPHIA
Award Date 12/31/2020 State PA

End Date 12/31/2021 Postal Code 19176

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $76,915.66 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $76,915.66 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Directors & officers insurance, municipal package insurance, and general
liability insurance for 2021 calendar.

32. Vendor Name

Print2Web, LLC

Address Line1

25 John Glenn Drive, Suite 102

Type of Procurement

Other Professional Services

Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City ‘AMHERST
Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14228
Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount

Province/Region

Amount Expended For
Fiscal Year

$5,271.00

Country

United States

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

2022 Calendar design ($1,125), 2020 Annual Report graphic design and
printing ($4,146)

Page 17 of 20

41



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/28/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

33. Vendor Name

Specirum Reach

Address Line1

425 Michigan Avenue, Suite 205

Type of Procurement

Other Professional Services

Address Line2

Award Process

Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City BUFFALO
Award Date 2/1/2021 State NY
End Date 5/31/2021 Postal Code 14203
Fair Market Value Plus 4
Amount $13,000.00 Province/Region
Amount Expended For $5,965.62 Country United States
Fiscal Year .

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description -

Targeted local advertising re: COVID-18 PPE grant program

34. Vendor Name

The Buffalo News Address Line1 PO Box 650
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2
Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BUFFALO
Award Date State NY
End Date Postal Code 14240
Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount

Province/Region

Amount Expended For
Fiscal Year"

$32,529.00

Country

United States

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Public hearing notices, subscriptions

Page 18 of 20

42



v b

Rt -3 T e

Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date:
Status:

02/28/2022
UNSUBMITTED

Certified Date : N/A

35, Vendor. Name W.B. Mason Co., Inc. Address Line1 P.O. Box 981101
quum of Procurement Commodities/Supplies Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BOSTON

Award Date State MA

End Date Postal Code 02298

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount Province/Region

Amount Expended For $12,946.84 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Office supplies.

Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

36. Vendor Name Westminster Economic Development Initiative (WEDI) Address Line1 436 Grant Street

Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BUFFALO

Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14213

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount

Province/Region

Amount Expended For
Fiscal Year

$10,000.00

Country

United States

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

2021 and 2022 event sponsorships

Page 19 of 20

43



Procurement Report for Erie County Industrial Development Agency

. Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date:
Status:

02/28/2022

UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

37. Vendor Name

Windstream

Address Line1

P.O. Box 9001013

Type of Procurement

Telecommunication Equipment or Services

Address Line2

.Award Process Purchased Under State Contract City LOUISVILLE
Award Date State KY

End Date Postal Code 40290

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount

Province/Region

Amount Expended For
Fiscal Year

$22,826.43

Country

United States

Explain why the Fair Procurement Phone and Internet Services
Market Value is Less Description
than the Amount

ional Co

Page 20 of 20

44



iy iy SSwem it

Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

ATTACHMENT 8A

Run Date: 01/22/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

Response URL (If Applicable)

1. Does the Authority have procurement guidelines? Yes hitps://www.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-policies
2, Are the procurement guidelines reviewed annually, amended if needed, and approved by the Board? Yes
3. Does the Authority allow for exceptions to the procurement guidelines? No
4, Does the Authority assign credit cards to employees for travel and/or business purchases? No
5. Does the Authority require prospective bidders to sign a non-collusion agreement? Yes
6. Does the Authority incorporate a summary of its procurement policies and prohibitions in its solicitation of Yes

proposals, bid documents, or specifications for procurement contracts? -
7. Did the Authority designate a person or persons to serve as the authorized contact on a specific procurement, in | Yes

accordance with Section 139-j(2)(a) of the State Finance Law, "The Procurement Lobbying Act"?
8. Did the Autharity determine that a vendor had impermissible contact during a procurement or attempted fo No

influence the procurement during the reporting period, in accordance with Section 139-j(10) of the State Finance

Law?
8a. If Yes, was a record made of this impermissible contact?
9, Does the Authority have a process to review and investigate allegations of impermissible contact during a Yes

procurement, and to impose sanctions in instances where violations have occurred, in accordance with Section
138-j(9) of the State Finance Law?

Page 1 of 5

45



R N e ¥ o BRI R e 8 e PO TR [ e ]

Pracurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 01/22/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

than the Amount

1. Vendor Name Buffalo Business First Address Linet 465 Main Street
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BUFFALO
Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14203

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount Province/Region

Amount Expended For $16,850.00 Country United States
Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Loan program marketing in local weekly business publication.
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

2, Vendor Name Erie County IDA Address Line1 95 Perry Street
Type of Procurement Staffing Services Address Line2 Suite 403
Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BUFFALO
Award Date - State NY

End Date Postal Code 14203

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount Province/Region

Amount Expended For $281,590.16 Country United States
Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Management fee to Erie County IDA for staffing services, rent, and expense
Market Value is Less Description reimbursement.

Page 2 of 5 -

46



SRy b

Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Carparation

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date:
Status:
Certified Date :

01/22/2022
UNSUBMITTED
N/A

3. Vendor Name

Freed Maxick CPAs, P.C.

Address Line1

424 Main Street, Suite 800

Type of Procurement

Other Professional Services

Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City BUFFALO
Award Date 9/27/2017 State NY

End Date 5/31/2022 Postal Code 14202

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $19,450.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $19,450.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year .

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Audit services.

4. Vendor Name H. Sicherman & Company, Inc. Address Line1 5852 Forest Creek Drive
Type of Procurement Consulting Services Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City EAST AMHERST
Award Date 2/12/2021 State NY

End Date 2/11/2022 Postal Code 14051

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $9,296.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $9,296.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Vailue is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Underwriting and loan analysis consulting services at agreed-upon hourly

rates.

Page 3 of 5

47



Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 01/22/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

5. Vendor Name Hurwitz & Fine, P.C. Address Line1 1300 Liberty Building
Type of Procurement Legal Services Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City BUFFALO

Award Date 5/1/2019 State NY

End Date 5/1/2022 Postal Code 14202

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $101,015.11 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $101,015.11 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
‘than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Legal services related to lending activity.

6. Vendor Name

MRI Contract Staffing, Inc.

Address Line1

6790 Main Street, Suite 160

Type of Procurement

Staffing Services

Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City WILLIAMSVILLE

Award Date 21712021 State NY

End Date 11/19/2021 Postal Code 14221

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $40,427.54 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $40,427.54 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Temporary staffing services through Strauss Group Executive Search
Market Value Is Loss Description Cansultants in connection with COVID-19 grant award from EDA.,

than the Amount

Page 4 of 5

48



1Cp benYensi g

Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation Run Date: 01/22/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021 Certified Date : N/A
nal € e

Page 5 of 5

49



Eoemim

Pracurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

ATTACHMENT 8B

Run Date: 02/23/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

roc ation:
Question Response URL (If Applicable)
1. Does the Authority have procurement guidelines? Yes https://mww.ecidany.com/about-us-corporate-policies
2. Are the procurement guidelines reviewed annually, amended if needed, and approved by the Board? Yes
3. Does the Authority allow for exceptions to the procurement guidelines? No
4, Does the Authority assign credit cards to employees for travel and/or business purchases? No
5. Does the Authority require prospective bidders to sign a non-collusion agreement? Yes
6. Does the Authority incorporate a summary of its procurement policies and prohibitions in its solicitation of Yes
proposals, bid documents, or specifications for procurement contracts?
7. Did the Autharity designate a person or persons to serve as the authorized contact on a specific procurement, in | Yes
accordance with Section 139-j(2)(a) of the State Finance Law, "The Procurement Lobbying Act"?
8. Did the Authority determine that a vendor had impermissible contact during a procurement or attempted to No
influence the procurement during the reporting period, in accordance with Section 139-j(10) of the State Finance
Law?
8a. If Yes, was a record made of this impermissible contact?
9. Does the Authority have a process to review and investigate allegations of impermissible contact during a Yes
procurement, and to impose sanctions in instances where violations have occurred, in accordance with Section
139-)(9) of the State Finance Law?

Page1o0of 8

50



[ =iy i

(SRR U 2

<00 1 B R @y e r it ey el oo it

Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/23/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

1. Vendor Name AECOM USA, Inc. Address Line1 1178 Paysphere Circle
Type of Procurement Other Professional Services Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City CHICAGO

Award Date 4/13/2018 State IL

End Date 12/29/2020 Postal Code 60674

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $349,271.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $9,691.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Bethiehem Steel infrastructure master plan and Generic Environmental
Market Value is Less Description Impact Statement.
than the Amount

2. Vendor Name Buffalo Business First Address Line1 465 Main Street
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BUFFALO

Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14203

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount Province/Region

Amount Expended For $10,300.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value Is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Event sponsorships and targeted advertising in local weekly business
publication.

Page 2 of 8

51



Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Run Date: 02/23/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Certified Date : N/A

3. Vendor Name Empire State Development Address Line1 95 Perry Street, 5th Floor
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BUFFALO

Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14203

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount Province/Reglon

Amount Expended For $77,666.45 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Grant application fee and public hearing expense reimbursement.
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

4. Vendor Name Erie County Industrial Development Agency Address Line1 95 Perry Street

Type of Procurement Staffing Services Address Line2 Suite 403

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City BUFFALO

Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14203

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount -Province/Region

Amount Expended For $95,330.40 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Management fee to Erie County IDA for staffing services, expense
Market Value is Less ‘Description reimbursement.

than the Amount

Page 3 of 8

52



L PR iy L Tamm S tida

Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/23/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

5. Vendor Name Evans Town Clerk / Lynn Krajacic Address Line1 8787 Erie Road
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City ANGOLA
Award Date State NY

End Date Postal Code 14006

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount

Province/Region

Amount Expended For $11,742.62 -Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Angola Ag Park property taxes
Market Value is Less Description

than the Amount

6. Vendor Name

Harris Beach, PLLC

Address Line1

Larkin at Exchange

Type of Procurement

Legal Services

Address Line2

726 Exchange Street, Suite 1000

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City BUFFALO
Award Date 1/12/2009 State NY

End Date 5/1/2022 Postal Code 14210

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $62,287.21 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $62,287.21 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Legal services (ILDC General Counsel) based on hourly rates.

Page 4 of 8

53



Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation Run Date: 02/23/2022

Status: UNSUBMITTED

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021 Certified Date : N/A

7. Vendor Name LaBella Associates P.C. Address Line1 300 State Street
Type of Pracurement Consulting Services Address Line2 Suite 201
Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City ROCHESTER
Award Date 8/28/2019 State NY

End Date Postal Code 14614

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $18,500.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $18,500.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Environmental services to assist with due diligence efforts in connection
with the purchase and redevelopment of brownfield and various property

sites in Erie County, annual BCP certification.

8. Vendor Name

LaBella Associates P.C. Address Line1 300 State Street
Type of Procurement Design and Construction/Maintenance Address Line2 Suite 201
Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City ROCHESTER
Award Date 11/3/2020 State NY
End Date Postal Code 14614
Fair Market Value Plus 4
Amount $14,500.00 Province/Region
Amount Expended For $14,500.00 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Design of entrance sign for Renaissance Commerce Park

Page 5 of 8

54



Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

. Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/23/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

Fiscal Year

9. Vendor Name LaBella Associates, P.C. Address Line1 300 State Street
Type of Procurement Consulting Services Address Line2 Suite 201
Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City ROCHESTER
Award Date 1/20/2020 State NY

End Date Postal Code 14614

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $123,400.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $44,138.20 Country United States

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Planning/engineering services related to Bethlehem Steel Woodlawn
Shoreline Trail

10. Vendor Name

Lackawanna City Treasurer Address Line1 714 Ridge Road
Type of Procurement Other Address Line2
Award Process Non Contract Procurement/Purchase Order City LACKAWANNA
Award Date State NY
End Date Postal Code 14218
Fair Market Value Plus 4
Amount Province/Region
Amount Expended For $78,581.03 Country United States
Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

City of Lackawanna sewer tax for the Renaissance Commerce Park
property.

Page 6 of 8

55



Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation

Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Run Date: 02/23/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED
Certified Date : N/A

1. Vendor Name Lippes Mathias LLP Address Line1 50 Fountain Plaza, Suite 1700

Type of Procurement Other Address Line2

Award Process Authority Contract - Non-Competitive Bid City BUFFALO

Award Date 6/24/2021 State NY

End Date Postal Code 14202

Fair Market Value $1,538,000.00 Plus 4

Amount $1,055,001.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For amaw.wmo.mw Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair Procurement Lackawanna land purchase: deposit for Phase 2 part 1, pro-rata property
Market Value is Less Description taxes for part 1 purchase, deposit for Phase 2 part 2.
than the Amount

12. Vendor Name Wendel Address Line1 375 Essjay Road

Type of Procurement Consulting Services Address Line2 Suite 200

Award Process Authority Contract - Competitive Bid City WILLIAMSVILLE

Award Date 12/16/2020 State NY

End Date Postal Code 14221

Fair Market Value Plus 4

Amount $380,670.00 Province/Region

Amount Expended For $242,582.57 Country United States

Fiscal Year

Explain why the Fair
Market Value is Less
than the Amount

Procurement
Description

Erie County Agribusiness Park Master Plan/GEIS

Page 7 of 8

56



= FR @gaanet i o LT ews i

w7 P2 ] 3

T i s
- Procurement Report for Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development Corporation
Fiscal Year Ending: 12/31/2021

Additi Commen

Run Date: 02/23/2022
Status: UNSUBMITTED

Certified Date : N/A

Page 8 of 8

57



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp. (ILDC)
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC)

2021 Mission Statement and Performance Measurements

Approval Date: March 24, 2021

Purpose:

The Public Authorities Law requires public authorities to develop and adopt a mission
statement and to develop performance measures to assist them in determining how well
they are carrying out their mission. The Authorities Budget Office (ABO) requires that all
public authorities utilize the following format to annually review their mission statement
and performance measures and publish a measurement report. This report is designed
to satisfy these requirements.

Please note: The ECIDA publishes an annual report outlining detailed project information
and accomplishments called “Year in Review.” The Year in Review is on the ECIDA’s
website at https://www.ecidany.com under “About Us” then “Annual Reports”.

Mission Statement:

The mission of the Erie County IDA and its affiliates is to provide the resources that
encourage investment, innovation, workforce development and international trade
resulting in a successful business climate focused on growth, economic stability, job
creation and retention for businesses and individuals which improve the quality of life for
the residents of the region.

58



Performance Goals, Measures & Results:

Goal 1: To promote private investment & innovation:

Metric*:

Results:

$500.0

$400.0

©$300.0

$200.0
$100.0

50.0

Objective 1A: ECIDA: Encourage private sector investment by providing

incentives and other economic development services to spur
eligible development projects.

Measurement: Value of new private investments from tax incentives

$200 - $225 M in private investment from approved tax incentives

A total of 22 projects with a total private investment amount =
$457.5 M were approved far exceeding our goal. This included 3
amendatory and 5 adaptive reuse projects. Strength in several
industry sectors including manufacturing (11 projects) and
warehouse distribution/spec buildings (3 projects)- that when
combined represent 90% of the total investments made. Of note,
the ECIDA approved its first solar PILOT in 2021 contributing to NY
State’s green energy goals.

Tax Incentives Induced

2019 2020 2021

® w/oamend =w/amend

59




Objective 1B:

Measurement:

Metric*:

Results:

RDC: Provide “gap financing” to spur the creation of new
businesses and private-sector investment in working capital,
machinery and equipment.

Number of loans, $ amount of loans and amount of private
investment for loans approved

$3 M in new business loans with the private investment amount of
$3 M for a total of 7 loans approved

In 2021, the RDC approved 7 loans from the Legacy Fund for
$3,730,000 with $12.7 M in private investment.

Note: a new $5 million Revolving Loan Fund was created through
the EDA CARES ACT to assist businesses with the economic injury
caused by Covid. The $5 million per this fund was lent out to Erie
County Businesses in 2021 and are not included in the graph
below. (see Objective 4A for further details).

Loans Approved {in $M)

$15.0

$10.0

N . I
$0.0 T . .
2019 2020 2021

®Loan Amt  ® Private Invest Amt

60




| Objective 1C:

Measurement:

Metric*:

Results:

ECIDA & ILDC: Assist non-profit and other eligible borrowers to
obtain low-interest, tax-exempt bond financing.

Value of private investments from low-interest financing provided
to non-profit organizations

1 - 2 tax exempt bonds totaling $25 - $30 M

The ECIDA approved 1 bond for $140 M (Joint School Construction
Board Refunding of 2011A and 2011B bonds).

Tax Exempt Bonds Induced (in $M)

' $150.0 3
$100.0 /\ 2
$50.0 — 1
|
$0.0 0
2019 2020 2021

Bond Amt  ess===if of Bonds

Objective 1D:

Measurement:
Metric*:

Results:

ECIDA & ILDC: Pursue state, federal and private funding
opportunities to support priority projects and leverage private
investment.

Number and $ amount of grant applications submitted
2- 3 grants submitted for $800,000-$ 1 M

Five grants have been submitted for a total of $4,174,093. Three
(3) grants for a total of $3,370,024 have been approved, while the
remaining two ($804,069) are currently pending a decision.

Grants Submitted (in $M)

$10.0

$0.0 1=—au - =

2019 2020 2021

ONPO

 Grant Amt e of Grants

61




Goal 2: To support business formation, job growth, and economic expansion
targeting economically challenged and disadvantaged communities:

Obijective 2A:

Measurement:

Metric*:

Result:

ECIDA & ILDC: Support the re-investment in vacant, abandoned
and underutilized buildings.

Number and investment value of adaptive re-use building projects

Five to six projects approved totaling $40M - $50M in private
investment

Five adaptive projects have been approved with total private
investment = $ 20.4 M. While the number of projects we assisted
was as expected, the project size was smaller than anticipated per
past performance. Of note, these 5 projects range between $2.8 M
- $8.3 M in private investment and represent important in-fill
projects: (1) in the City of Tonawanda and (4) in the City of Buffalo.
The projects will create a total of 81 apartment units of which 29
units (36%) will be available at 80% of Area Median Income (AMI).
All 5 projects are located in distressed census tracts based upon
2020 census data.

Adaptive Reuse Projects {in $M)

$60.0 6

$40.0 / 4

$20.0 2

$0.0 0
2019 2020 2021

Total § === i of Projects

62




Objective 2B:

Measurement:

Metric:

Resuits:

ECIDA & RDC: Support the creation and growth of small business
and minority & women-owned businesses (MWBE).

Number and $ amount of MWBE business loans, tax incentives and
PPE Reimbursement grants .

$250,000 in assistance to 30 — 40 MWBEs

in 2021, a total of 40 minority, woman and/or veteran owned
businesses received assistance totaling over $1.69 M.
Minority/women/veteran owned businesses received: 11 loans for
$1.46 M (Cares Act revolving loan fund), 28 PPE Reimbursement
grants totaling $178,127 and 1 tax incentive that provided $54,300
in tax savings.

S Amount of MBE WBE Assistance

2,000,000.00
1,600,000.00
1,200,000.00

800,000.00

400,000.00
) — £

2019 2020 2021

Objective 2C:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Formalize MBE/WBE procurement goal for
Agency — Operational Purchases.

Procurement goal $ amount and % spent with MWBE vendors

Vendor Operational Purchases of $18,000 / 30% MWBE: office
supplies, catering, equipment leasing etc.

A total of $87,500 operational purchases were identified (major
categories were office supplies, IT services/hardware/software,
and marketing/printing). Of that total, $16,636 (19%) were from
M/WBEs. $9,632 (11%) were from WBEs and $7,005 (8%) were
from MBEs. While ECIDA did not meet our 2021 goal, we did
increase our M/WBE spend by 50% ($5,600). We also identified
and began doing business with an MBE office supply company.

63




Objective 2D:

[Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Formalize MBE/WBE procurement goal for |
Agency- Other purchases.

Procurement goal $ amount and % spent with MWBE vendors

Meet 100% of the following measures - Professional services
including 30% MWBE for engineering/design, Construction service
that includes 30% MWBE for contract utilization and RFPs and/or
bids scoring — that includes MWBE utilization and/or D&l initiatives
valued at 10% of the scoring index

Professional Services: 100% compliance: Six RFP/bids issued in
2021 with value = $1.2 M included 30% MWBE. 5 of 6 RFPs have
been awarded to vendors with commitment to 30% MWBE (=
$392,285).

Construction Services (none).

RFPS and/or Bids Scoring: 100% of RFPs included scoring
value = 10% for MBE/WBE commitment.

Objective 2E:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Create a formal diversity, inclusion & equity
policy for the organization focusing on staff development and
employment goals.

Implement training re: Racial Equity

Conduct Racial Equity training for existing staff and new hires (add
to onboarding process). Offer Racial Equity training to Board &
Board Committee Members

Efforts to support diversity, inclusion and equity in the workplace
included the following: 1) In June, 2021, ECIDA staff virtually
attended the 2021 Diversity & Inclusion Symposium presented by
BNP and the Community Foundation. All staff including anyone
who was unable fo attend this % day event and staff hired “post-
event” were provided with access to the various presentations and
tools from the symposium to review independently. The ECIDA
plans to utilize new software to store on-boarding materials
including Racial Equity training from this event or similar training as
available. 2) The scope of work for the updated Comprehensive
Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) includes

64



recommendations for promoting Equity in economic development
planning and implementation to ensure that underserved
populations have the opportunity to participate in Erie County’s
economic prosperity. 3) ECIDA staff member participated in the
Canisius Women's Business Center’s Building Allyship Program —
a program that brings together women of color entrepreneurs and
mentor volunteer. Upon program completion, staff member was
matched with and is mentoring a start up minority business owner.

Objective 2F:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA: Support the creation and retention of jobs at all salary
levels.

Total # and average $ of jobs to be retained & created overall and
broken down for the following categories: management,
professional, administrative, production, independent contractor
and other

Average salary for retained and created jobs at $40,000 - $45,000

In 2021 the average salary for the 3,373 jobs retained and created
through the ECIDA tax incentive projects was $59,340. The total
annual payroll amount = $217.7 Milion. The following is a
breakdown of average salaries by category.

Salary
Without Fringe |With Fringe
Category # of Jobs |Benefits Benefits
Management 157 $121,156 $154,034
Professional 688 $79,656 $104,835
Administrative 181 $46,685 $60,744
Production 2,211 $51,770 $68,879
Independent Contractor 1 $15,000 $15,000
Other 75 $72,152 $87,363
3,313

*note: The total # of jobs shown in the table is 60 fewer than noted in the overall results as one company submitted
their job information confidentiaily {60 new jobs).

65




Objective 2G:

Measurement:
Metric*:

Results:

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Reach out to Erie County businesses to
inform them of ECIDA & other business support services available.

Number of sales contacts
425-450 sales contacts made

In 2021 1,432 business development sales contacts were made.
Business development outreach includes: 279 business
development / events / professional partner meetings, 836
attendees to ECIDA presentations, 157 responses to PPE grant
inquiries and 160 responses to COVID Loan Inquiries This year,
we are including additional contacts made through MarCom
activities. In 2021, 22,913 individuals were reached through the
following MarCom outreach activities: sponsorships, panel
participation, email blasts, holiday calendar mailing and podcasts.

Objective 2H:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ILDC: Support reinvestment in vacant and abandoned brownfield
properties for the purpose of creating shovel-ready sites, new
investment, and jobs.

Number of acres of land redeveloped / in the process of
redevelopment and public/private investment amounts

400 acres of land under management

Continued management and redevelopment of approximately 490
acres of land: 250 acres vacant and/or brownfield and 240 acres of
redevelopment for the Agribusiness Park. During 2021, the
Renaissance Commerce Park saw private investments total over
$56 Mil and the number of jobs retained / to be created on the site
rise to 291 FTE. Other 2021 Highlights include:

Engaged Consultant and began Masterpian Agri-business Park
Completed Shoreline Trail Extension Study

Branded site Renaissance Commerce Park

Completed Purchase Sale Agreement for 80 additional Acres at RCP
Sold 10 acres to Uniland Development for spec. building

Began design work for Utility extensions at Ridge Road and Qdell St
Began road “B” design work

TMP Technologies began operations on site

66




Goal 3: To encourage international trade:

Objective 3A:

Measurement:

Metric*:

Results:

ECIDA: Promote & support the use of Erie County’s foreign trade
zone (FTZ) to assist businesses in remaining globally competitive
by reducing, eliminating, or deferring import duties.

Value of goods moving through FTZ #23 and # of FTZ activated
sites

A total of 6 FTZ sites with goods valued at $45 M - $55 M moving
through the zone

$70.6 M in goods moved through the FTZ in 2020* up from $3.8 M
in the prior year. The FTZ sites increased to 7 with 18 businesses
using the zone. The increase in FTZ activity was primarily due to a
large sugar importer/manufacturer establishing a new distribution
warehouse in EC FTZ #23. This help offset the continued
uncertainty of foreign tariffs on goods due to U.S. Global Trade
Policies being renegotiated by the Biden Administration with
various foreign countries. Additionally logistic issues stymied the
import and export of goods through FTZ #23 as COVID 19 related
issues plagued the world’s economy.

(note: due to FTZ reporting lag — the prior year's results will be listed)

Goal 4: Response to Global Pandemic:

Obijective 4A:

Measurement:
Metric:

Results:

Utilize “new” Revolving Loan Funds made available through the
CARES Act to provide low-cost financing to Erie County-
businesses to alleviate sudden and severe economic dislocation or
to support opportunities associated with COVID-19 pandemic.

Number of loans, $ amount of loans
20 loans approved, $2.5 million in new loans

A total of over $4.9 mil in new loans (30) were approved through
CARES Act funding.

67




Objective 4B:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA: PANDEMIC RESPONSE - Assistance to Small Business
& not-for-profit businesses in response to the COVID pandemic.

Allocation of funding to support ECIDA COVID 19 Emergency
Grant Program and awarding business grants with a focus on
businesses in distressed areas and MWBE & veteran owned
businesses

Additional $500,000 allocated with 60 — 70 grants awarded

The ECIDA Board allocated an additional $500,000 to the ECIDA
grant program in Jan 2021. During 2021, the ECIDA COVID 19
Disaster Emergency Grant Program awarded 53 grants totaling
$328,720 to Erie County based not for profits, small businesses in
distressed areas as well as to MWBE & veteran owned small
businesses. The number of grants awarded fell slightly below the
goal with the sudden end of the program on 6/24/21 upon the
Governor lifting the NY State of Emergency.

Objective 4C:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA RDC, ILDC: PANDEMIC RESPONSE — Support Small
Businesses in Erie County Consortium Communities whose
owners have low to moderate household incomes.

Provide administrative support for the Erie County Microenterprise
Loan program funded by Community Development Block Grant
funds.

20 microloans approved totaling $500,000.00

In 2021, a total of 22 Erie County Microenterprise Loans closed
totaling $760,000.

68




Goal 5: To safeguard the public’s investment by ensuring compliance and
transparency with ECIDA Policies & Procedures, NYS Tax, EDA and ABO
requirements:

Objective 5A: ECIDA: Client compliance with material terms including local labor,
employment retention & creation, investment, pay equity and
unpaid real property tax policies.

Measurement: Analysis of quarterly employment & local labor reports, review of
investment verifications, completion of pay equity audits by Erie
County office of EEO and real property tax payments through the
Erie County Commissioner of Real Property Services

Metric: 100% compliance

Results: 100% of client material terms reporting and filing were met including
for the 3/31/21 ABO annual report. As a result of the pandemic,
there were X companies that did not meet their employment
requirement due to the pandemic. The Board passed a resolution
providing relief from recapture procedures for those companies
that demonstrated employment impacts from the pandemic and
economic shutdown.

| Objective 5B: ECIDA: Client compliance with the New York State Sales and Use
Tax program.

Measurement: Review of clients’ ST-340 forms and the amount of the sales tax
savings approved by the Board of Directors to ensure that the
amount of the sales tax savings that clients report does not exceed
the board approved amounts

Metric: 100% client compliance
Results: 100% compliance for 3/31/21 reporting of clients not exceeding

approved sales tax limits - sales tax amounts exceeding approved
limits were collected and submitted to NYS.

Objective 5C: RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over the administration
of the revolving loan fund (RLF).

Measurement: Obtain the highest rating from the U.S. Dept of Commerce:
Economic Development Administration (EDA) on the quality / health
of the RLF administered by the RDC

69



Metric:

Results:

“A” rating from the EDA

In 2021 based on the overall performance and successful
operation of the RLF (since inception in 1979), the EDA, released
its Federal interest in the RLF. This courtesy was only offered to
RLF awardees that have operated satisfactorily for seven years
beyond the disbursement of grant funds. No “letter” rating was
provided.

Objective 5D:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Compliance with ABO’s deadlines and
regulatory requirements.

Timely and accurate filing of the annual PARIS reports, budget
and financial audits

100% compliance

All annual PARIS (ABO) reporting was filed on time and in an
accurate fashion meeting the ABO’s 3/31/21 deadline. .

Objective 5E:

Metric:

Results:

Measurement: Board completion of the annual Board of Directors Self Evaluation,

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Board Member compliance with ABO
regulatory requirements.

execution of the Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Duties &
Responsibilities forms, and completion of the required ABO board
member training

100% compliance

All Board of Directors (ABO) reporting was filed on time and in
an accurate fashion meeting the ABO’s 3/31/21 deadline. .

The Agency is on track to meet filing requirements of the ABO's 3/31/22 reporting

deadline.

*Metrics were calculated based upon a 3-year rolling average (for period 2019 — 2021) with adjustments
made to reflect expected future economic trends, pipeline strength and other factors that are anticipated to

impact future results.

70




Governance Certification

1. Have the board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the
mission of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: Yes

2. Who has the power to appoint the management of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: The Board of Directors

3. If the Board appoints management, do you have a policy you follow when
appointing the management of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: The Board has not adopted a written policy.
However, the Board follows prudent and reasonable practices to appoint
responsible individuals.

4. Briefly describe the role of the Board and the role of management in the
implementation of the mission.

Board of Directors response: The role of the Board regarding the
implementation of the public authority’s mission is to provide strategic guidance,
oversight, mission authorization, policy setting and validation of the authority’s
mission, performance measurements and results. The role of management is to
collaborate with the Board in strategy development and to implement established
programs, processes, activities and policies to achieve the public authority's
mission.

5. Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood the responses
to each of these questions?

Board of Directors response: Yes

71



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA)
Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp. (ILDC)
Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corporation (RDC)

2022 Mission Statement and Performance Measurements

Approval Date: March 23, 2022

Purpose:

The Public Authorities Law requires public authorities to develop and adopt a mission
statement and to develop performance measures to assist them in determining how well
they are carrying out their mission. The Authorities Budget Office (ABO) requires that all
public authorities utilize the following format to annually review their mission statement
and performance measures and publish a measurement report. This report is designed
to satisfy these requirements.

Please note: The ECIDA publishes an annual report outlining detailed project information
and accomplishments called “Year in Review.” The Year in Review is on the ECIDA’s
website at https://www.ecidany.com under “About Us” then “Annual Reports”.

Mission Statement:

The mission of the Erie County IDA and its affiliates is to provide the resources that
encourage investment, innovation, workforce development and international trade
- resulting in a successful business climate focused on growth, economic stability, job
creation and retention for businesses and individuals which improve the quality of life for
the residents of the region.

72



Performance Goalis,

Measures & Results:

Goal 1: To promote private investment & innovation:

Objective 1A:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA: Encourage private sector investment by providing
incentives and other. economic development services to spur
eligible development projects.

Measurement: Value of new private investments from tax incentives

$225 - $250 M in private investment from approved tax incentives.

Objective 1B:

Measurement:

Metric*:

Results:

RDC: Provide “gap financing” to spur the creation of new
businesses and private-sector investment in working capital,
machinery and equipment.

Number of loans, $ amount of loans and amount of private
investment for loans approved

8 — 10 Business loans approved for a total of $3 M in new business
loans with a private investment amount = $8 M.

Objective 1C:

Measurement:

Metric*:

Results:

ECIDA & ILDC: Assist non-profit and other eligible borrowers to
obtain low-interest, tax-exempt bond financing.

Value of private investments from low-interest financing provided
to non-profit organizations

1 -2 tax exempt bonds totaling $30 — $35 M

|

73



Objective 1D: ECIDA & ILDC: Pursue state, federal and private funding\
opportunities to support priority projects and leverage private
investment.

Measurement: Number and $ amount of grant applications submitted
Metric*: 4 — 5 grants submitted for $1.5 - $2 M.

Results:

Goal 2: To support business formation, job growth, and economic expansion
targeting economically challenged and disadvantaged communities:

Objective 2A: ECIDA & ILDC: Support the re-investment in vacant, abandoned
and underutilized buildings.

Measurement: Number and investment value of adaptive re-use building projects
Metric*: 5 - 6 adaptive reuse projects approved totaling $150 - $175 M

Result:

Objective 2B: ECIDA & RDC: Support the creation and growth of small business
and minority & women-owned businesses (MWBE).

Measurement: Number and $ amount of MWBE business loans, tax incentives and
PPE Reimbursement grants

Metric: $250,000 in assistance to 5 — 7 MWBEs

| Results:

74



Objective 2C: ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Formalize MBE/WBE procurement goal for |
Agency — Operational Purchases.

Measurement: Procurement goal $ amount and % spent with MWBE vendors

Metric: Vendor Operational Purchases of $18,000 / 30% MWBE: office
supplies, catering, equipment leasing etc.

Results:

Objective 2D: ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Formalize MBE/WBE procurement goal for
Agency— Other purchases.

Measurement: Procurement goal $ amount and % spent with MWBE vendors

Metric: Meet 100% of the following measures - Professional services
including 30% MWBE for engineering/design, Construction service
that includes 30% MWBE for contract utilization and RFPs and/or
bids scoring — that includes MWBE utilization and/or D&l initiatives
valued at 10% of the scoring index

Resuilts:

Objective 2E: ECIDA, ILDC & RDC: Create a formal diversity, equity & inclusion
policy for the organization focusing on staff development and
employment goals.

Measurement: Implement training re: Racial Equity

Metric: 1) Formalize Racial Equity training as part of online onboarding
capabilities through new HR software and 2) provide two or more
continued educational / training opportunities for staff on DEI

Results:

75




Objective 2F:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

(note: include

ECIDA: Support the creation and retention of jobs at all salary
levels.

Total # and average $ of jobs to be retained & created. For
informational purposes include salary info re: management,
professional, administrative, production, independent contractor
and other

Average salary for retained and created jobs at $45,000 - $50,000

average salaries in various job categories and the total payroll

amount).

Objective 2G: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Reach out to Erie County businesses to
inform them of ECIDA and other business support services
available.

Measurement: Number of business outreach attempts (including marketing
communication efforts)

Metric: 20,000 business outreach contacts

Results:

Objective 2H: ILDC: Support reinvestment in vacant, abandoned brownfield

: properties and regionally strategic land development initiatives for
the purpose of creating shovel-ready sites, new investment, and
jobs. :

Measurement: Number of acres of land redeveloped / in the process of
redevelopment and public/private investment amounts

Metric: 400 acres of land under management

Results:

76




Goal 3: To encourage international trade:

Objective 3A: ECIDA: Promote & support the use of Erie County’s foreign trade
zone (FTZ) to assist businesses in remaining globally competitive
by reducing, eliminating or deferring import duties.

Measurement: Value of goods moving through FTZ #23 and # of FTZ activated
sites

Metric*: A total of 7 FTZ sites with goods valued at $50 - $60 M moving
through the zone.

Results:

(note: due to FTZ reporting lag — the prior year's results will be listed)

Goal 4: Business Resiliency Post COVID:

Objective 4A: ECIDA, RDC, ILDC: Assist Erie County businesses post COVID.
Measurement: Provide a roadmap for business resiliency

Metric: Approval of an Updated 2022 Community Economic Development
Strategy (CEDS) that includes a Post COVID-19 Economic
Recovery Response Addendum that will provide action steps for
responding to the economic injury/disruption caused by the
coronavirus pandemic

Results:

Objective 4B: ECIDA RDC, ILDC: Support Small Businesses in Erie County
Consortium Communities whose owners have low to moderate
household incomes.

Measurement: Provide administrative support for the Erie County Microenterprise
Loan and other programs funded by Community Development
Block Grant funds

Metric: Approve 5-7 loans for $150,000

Results:

77



Goal 5: To safeguard the public’s investment by ensuring compliance and

transparency with
requirements:

ECIDA Policies & Procedures, NYS Tax, EDA and ABO

Objective 5A: ECIDA: Client compliance with material terms including local labor,

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

employment retention & creation, investment, pay equity and
unpaid real property tax policies.

Analysis of quarterly employment & local labor reports, review of
investment verifications, completion of pay equity audits by Erie
County office of EEO and real property tax payments through the
Erie County Commissioner of Real Property Services

100% compliance

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

Objective 5B: ECIDA: Client compliance with the New York State Sales and Use

Tax program.

Review of clients’ ST-340 forms and the amount of the sales tax
savings approved by the Board of Directors to ensure that the
amount of the sales tax savings that clients report does not exceed
the board approved amounts

100% client compliance

Objective 5C:

Measurement:

Metric:

Results:

ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Compliance with ABO's deadlines and
regulatory requirements.

Timely and accurate filing of the annual PARIS reports, budget
and financial audits

100% compliance

78




Objective 5D: ECIDA, RDC & ILDC: Board Member compliance with ABO
regulatory requirements.

Measurement: Board completion of the annual Board of Directors Self Evaluation,
execution of the Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Duties &
Responsibilities forms, and completion of the required ABO board
member training

Metric: 100% compliance

Resuilts:

Objective 5E: RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over the
administration of the Revolving loan fund (RLF).

Measurement. Obtain the highest audit rating from the ECIDA designated
auditors.

Metric: Receive a “satisfactory” rating on the RLF Audit

Results: |

Objective 5F: RDC: Ensure proper controls and safeguards over the
administration of the new $5 Mil EDA CARES Act revolving loan
fund (RLF).

Measurement: Obtain the highest rating from the U.S. Dept of Commerce:
Economic Development Administration (EDA) on the quality /
health of the RLF administered by the RDC

Metric: Receive an “A” rating from the EDA.

Results:

79




Governance Certification

1.

Have the board members acknowledged that they have read and understood the
mission of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: Yes

Who has the power to appoint the management of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: The Board of Directors

If the Board appoints management, do you have a policy you follow when
appointing the management of the public authority?

Board of Directors response: The Board has not adopted a written policy.
However, the Board follows prudent and reasonable practices to appoint
responsible individuals.

Briefly describe the role of the Board and the role of management in the
implementation of the mission.

Board of Directors response: The role of the Board regarding the
implementation of the public authority’s mission is to provide strategic guidance,
oversight, mission authorization, policy setting and validation of the authority’s
mission, performance measurements and results. The role of management is to
collaborate with the Board in strategy development and to implement established
programs, processes, activities and policies to achieve the public authority’s
mission.

Has the Board acknowledged that they have read and understood the responses
to each of these questions?

Board of Directors response: Yes

80



2021 ECIDA Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Criteria

Agree

Somewhat
Agree

Somewhat
Disagree

Disagree

#

#

#

#

Board members have a shared understanding
of the mission and purpose of the Authority.

10

2

The policies, practices and decisions of the
Board are always consistent with this mission.

11

1

Board members comprehend their role and
fiduciary responsibilities and hold themselves
and each other to these principles.

10

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance, -
management and operations of the Authority
and reviews these annually.

11

The Board sets clear and measurable
performance goals for the Authority that
contribute to accomplishing its mission.

11

The decisions made by Board members are
arrived at through independent judgment and
deliberation, free of political influence, pressure
or self-interest.

Individual Board members communicate
effectively with executive staff so as to be well
informed on the status of all important issues.

10

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’'s programs, financial statements,
reporting requirements, and other transactions.

10

The Board meets to review and approve all
documents and reports prior to public release
and is confident that the information being
presented is accurate and complete.

12

The Board knows the statutory obligations of
the Authority and if the Authority is in
compliance with state law.

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the
active participation of members.

11

Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before
decisions are made and votes taken.

10

Individual Board members feel empowered to
delay votes, defer agenda items, or table
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.

10

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of
the CEO and other executive staff, including
setting performance expectations and
reviewing performance annually.

12

The Board has identified the areas of most risk
to the Authority and works with management to
implement risk mitigation strategies before
problems occur.

10

Board members demonstrate leadership and
vision and work respectfully with each other.

12

Name of Authority: Erie County Industrial Development Agency; Date Completed: 3/8/2022

81




2021 RDC Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

Somewhat | Somewhat

Criteria Agree Agree Disagree | Disagree
# # # #

Board members have a shared understanding

of the mission and purpose of the Authority. 10 2

The policies, practices and decisions of the

Board are always consistent with this mission. 11 1

Board members comprehend their role and

fiduciary responsibilities and hold themselves 10 2

and each other to these principles.

The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance, 11 1
management and operations of the Authority
and reviews these annually.

The Board sets clear and measurable
performance goals for the Authority that 11 1
contribute to accomplishing its mission.

The decisions made by Board members are
arrived at through independent judgment and 8 3 1
deliberation, free of political influence, pressure
or self-interest.

Individual Board members communicate
effectively with executive staff so as to be well 10 2
informed on the status of all important issues.

Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements, 10 2
reporting requirements, and other transactions.

The Board meets to review and approve all

documents and reports prior to public release
and is confident that the information being 12
presented is accurate and complete.

The Board knows the statutory obligations of
the Authority and if the Authority is in 9 3
compliance with state law. -

Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the 1 1
active participation of members.

Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before 10 2
decisions are made and votes taken.

Individual Board members feel empowered to
delay votes, defer agenda items, or table 10 1 1
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.

The Board exercises appropriate oversight of
the CEO and other executive staff, including 12
setting performance expectations and
reviewing performance annually.

The Board has identified the areas of most risk
to the Authority and works with management to 10 2
implement risk mitigation strategies before
problems occur.

Board members demonstrate leadership and
vision and work respectfully with each other. 12

Name of Authority: Buffalo & Erie County Regional Development Corp.; Date Completed: 3/8/2022

82



2021 ILDC Summary Results of Confidential Evaluation of Board Performance

[ Somewhat | Somewhat

Criteria Agree Agree Disagree | Disagree
# # # #

Board members have a shared understanding

of the mission and purpose of the Authority. 4

The policies, practices and decisions of the

Board are always consistent with this mission. 4

Board members comprehend their role and

fiduciary responsibilities and hold themselves 4

and each other to these principles.
The Board has adopted policies, by-laws, and
practices for the effective governance,
management and operations of the Authority 4
and reviews these annually.
The Board sets clear and measurable
performance goals for the Authority that 4
contribute to accomplishing its mission.
The decisions made by Board members are
arrived at through independent judgment and 3 1
deliberation, free of political influence, pressure
or self-interest.
Individual Board members communicate
effectively with executive staff so as to be well 3 1
informed on the status of all important issues.
Board members are knowledgeable about the
Authority’s programs, financial statements, 3 1
reporting requirements, and other transactions.
The Board meets to review and approve all
documents and reports prior to public release 4
and is confident that the information being
presented is accurate and complete.
The Board knows the statutory obligations of
the Authority and if the Authority is in 2 2
compliance with state law.
Board and committee meetings facilitate open,
deliberate and thorough discussion, and the 4
active participation of members.
Board members have sufficient opportunity to
research, discuss, question and prepare before 4
decisions are made and votes taken.
Iindividual Board members feel empowered to
delay votes, defer agenda items, or table 2 2
actions if they feel additional information or
discussion is required.
The Board exercises appropriate oversight of
the CEO and other executive staff, including 4
setting performance expectations and
reviewing performance annually.
The Board has identified the areas of most risk
to the Authority and works with management to 4
implement risk mitigation strategies before
_problems occur.
Board members demonstrate leadership and
vision and work respectfully with each other. 4

Authority: Buffalo & Erie County Industrial Land Development Corp.; Date Completed: 3/8/2022

83



"pebeinoous ale sisquisw Ag suonsanb pue sjuswIWOoD ||e pue siaquiaw
Sspwwod usamyaq anbojelp (ngybnoy) ‘ysnqgol s aisyy sbunas saILWOD (B Ty

‘slaquiaw Jo uonedioed
2Al)oB 8Y) pue ‘uoissnoasip Ubnoloy) pue ajeiaqiop
‘uado ajeyjioe;) sBuesw sspIWWIODd pue pieog

“Me| eje1s
unm aoueldwod ul si Auoyiny sy} i pue Auoyiny
ay} jo suonebligo Aiojnjels ay) smouy pleog ay L

"sanss| Jo/pue suonsanb Aue Buissaippe pue Buipesai 1o} awiy
MOjje 0} @oUBApE Ul pIeoq 8U} YIm paleys SIe S[elajew pajejal pue UoReWIo |y

‘a391dwod pue ajeinoade

si pajuasaid Buiaq uoneULIOUl BU) JBY) JUapluod

S| pue asesjal 2lqnd 0} Joud spodas pue sjuswnoop
lle ancidde pue maiaal 0) sjesw pieog ay

‘suoljoesuel) Jaylo pue ‘syuswalnbai
Buntoday ‘syuswaless |eroueuy ‘swesbold s fuoyiny
ay) 1noge ajqeabpajmouy e siaquidsw pieog

-abueyoxa
uonewloul Ajaw 10} MOJ[e Jey} SUOIEDIUNWILLIOD Uado aABY SJaquudll pJeoq pue Jels

4JElS pue sIaquia pJeog Y)m UOHEDIUNWILLOD JBals)

"sanss! Juepodwi jje Jo smejs
SU} UO PBULIOJUI [|2M O O} SE 0S JJBlS SMINIOXS UM
AjoAnoaya a)eolunLwod siaguuaty preog [ENpIAIPU|

"JSaIajuIjas Jo ainssald ‘sousnyul [eonijod Jo o9l
‘uoijesaqiep pue juswbpnl juspuadapul ybnosy) 18
paAlLle ale siaquisw pleog Aq apew suoIsioap ayl

‘uoissiw sy buysidwoaose
0} a)nquuod Jey} Aluoyiny auy Joy sjeob
soueuwiopad ajgeinseswl pue Jes|o sjos pieog a8yl

‘sBuneswi
Je padJojuial ale Aal) WNWiul e je pue papaau se pajepdn pue pamsIAsl ale $9191|0d

‘Allenuue

953} smalAal pue Ajloyiny ay) Jo suonesado pue
uswabeuew ‘soueulanob aanoaye ay; Joy seonoeld
pue ‘smej-Aq ‘ssioljod pajdope sey pieog 8yl

'sajdiouiid asay) 0}
Jaylo yoes pue seAiBsWway} pjoy pue saljiqisuodsal
Aieonpy pue aj0J Jiay) pusyaidwiod siaquis pJeog

"UCISSIW SIY} YIIM JUS]SISUOD SABMIE aIB
pieog 8y} Jo suoisioap pue saooeid ‘saoljod sy

“gsodind
'3 UOISSIW U0 UOIBULIOJUI JBquIsW PIEO] YOBS MO||B 0} Pjoy 818 SUOHEJUSLIO pieog

‘Auloyiny ay) jo esodind pue uolIssil
8y} jo Bulpue)siapun paseys e aAeY Sisquaw pieog

sjuswiwo)

)

8doUBWLIOMd PieOg JO Uolen|eAd [euspyuod SATIIAN/VAIDT

84



220z '8 yoJen :pajeldwog aeg

(0@ WOQ¥/vaIoa) eeljye yoes soj AaAlns ajesedas
e ajojdwiod eseald ‘ajelilye Yyoea Joj Jualaylp a.e SIaMSUE JNoA 4| ‘suoiesodiod pajeliye Yaio3 Jie pue vaio3 ay; o) saijdde Aaains siy

"J8YJ0 yoea Ym Ajjnfioadsal yiom pue
uoisiA pue diysiapes} sjensuowsp sISqUISW pieog

"1n920

swajqoud alojaq salbsieljs uonebniw ysu juswa)dw
0} Juawabeuew yym sylom pue Auoyiny sy}

0} 3Sl) }SOW JO Seale ay) payjuapl sey pieog ay|

‘Alenuue asuewsousd

Buimaiaal pue suoljejoadxe asuewsopad

Bumas Buipnjou| ‘yels aapnsexa Jaylo pue 039
8y} 40 bisiano ajeudoidde sasiolaxs pleog sy

‘painbal s) uoISSNISIp JO UOHEBLLIOJUI [BUOHIPPE [99)
Aau) )1 suonoe s|qe) Jo ‘sway epuabe Jagep ‘sa)joA
Aejop 0} pasemodwa |29} slequisw pIeog jenpIAIpU|

"BUljOA 310jaq sway |je
SSnJs|p pue uoyewlojul jeuopippe jsenbai ‘atedaid 0y Ayunpoddo aaey siequisw jey)
os Bupsaw preoq pue 28)ILILIOD 10} SOUBADE Ul JUSS ale S|ELSjew pue uonjewsou|

"yoseasal
Pue mairs) 0} awy jo Aueid Buiab Bunssw Jo asueape ul fjlem papiroid si uojewlop|

"us)e) SSJOA puk apew ase suoisIDap
alojeq aledaid pue uonsanb ‘ssnosip ‘yoseasal
0} fyunpoddo jusioyins aAey siequiaw preog

w
- ]



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA), Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (RDC), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC)

2021 Governance Committee Self-Evaluation
Responsibilities of the Governance Committee:

The core responsibilities of the Governance Committee, as mandated under Section 2824(7) of the New
York Public Authorities Law, are set forth in the Bylaws and include: (i) keeping the Board informed of current
best governance practices; (ii) reviewing corporate governance trends; (iii) updating the Agency’s corporate
governance principles; and (iv) advising those responsible for appointing members to the Board on the skills
and experiences necessary required of potential Board members.

Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Comments

1. Are the members of the Governance X (O [ O
Committee appointed in accordance with
the Bylaws and are individuals appointed
to the Governance Committee
knowledgeable, or have expressed a
willingness to become knowledgeable, in
matters pertaining to governance?

2. Is each member of the Governance X O | O
Committee an “independent member”
within the meaning of, and to the extent
required by, Section 2825 of the New York
Public Authorities Law, as amended from
time to time? Did Governance Committee
members, who are members of the
Agency, comply with the conflict of interest
provisions applicable to public officers
under Article 18 of the New York General
Municipal Law?

3. Did the Governance Committee meet a <] L] [1 | The Governance Committee met on
minimum of once (1) each calendar year? 1/28/21, 2/9/21, and 3/17/21.
4. Were meeting notices and agendas < ] ]

prepared for each meeting and provided to
Governance Committee members by
electronic or regular mail at least five (5)
days in advance of the scheduled
meeting? Were minutes of all meetings
recorded by the Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary of the Agency? Did all meetings
comply with the requirements of the Open
Meetings Law?

86



5. Did the Governance Committee develop

Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

the Agency’s governance practices, which
should address transparency,
independence, accountability, fiduciary
responsibilities and management
oversight?

Comments

See Questions #6-#9 below.

Did the Governance Committee develop a
statement of the competencies and
personal attributes required of Board
members to assist those authorized to
appoint members to the Board in
identifying qualified individuals (it being
acknowledged that membership in the
Agency is determined pursuant to Section
891-a of the General Municipal Law)?

A Statement of the Competencies
and Personal Attributes is posted on
the ECIDA website. It was approved
by the ECIDA Board of Directors on
2/16/10. Revisions to this document
were not necessary in 2021.

Did the Governance Committee develop
and recommend to the Board any revisions
to the number and/or structure of Board
committees?

No additional committees were
recommended by the Governance
Committee in 2021,

Did the Governance Committee develop
and provide recommendations to the
Board regarding Board member education,
including new member orientation and
regularly scheduled Board member
training to be obtained from state-
approved frainers as required under
Section 2824(2) of the New York Public
Authorities Law?

New Board members attend an
orientation session hosted by ECIDA
staff and are provided with a New
Member Orientation Manual.

As of 12/31/21, 16 of 19 ECIDA/RDC
Board members and 5 of 7 ILDC
Board members have received the
PAAA required training. All Board
members who have not received the
training received notifications
throughout the year regarding PAAA
training session dates.

Did the Governance Committee develop,
review and recommend to the Board the
adoption and/or revisions to the following:

(i) the Agency’s Code of Ethics.

(i) written policies regarding conflicts of
interest.




Governance Committee Self-Evaluation

(iii) written policies regarding the
protection of whistleblowers from
retaliation.

(iv) equal opportunity and affirmative
action policies.

(v) written policies regarding procurement
of goods and services, including policies
relating to the disclosure of persons who
attempt to influence the Agency’s
procurement process.

(vi) written policies regarding the
disposition of real and personal property
and the acquisition of property.

(vii) committee charters, including this
Charter.

(viii) any other policies or documents
relating to the governance of the
Agency, including rules and
procedures for conducting the
business of the Agency’s Board,
including the Agency’s Bylaws. The
Governance Committee will oversee
the implementation and effectiveness
of the Bylaws and other governance
documents and recommend
modifications to the Board as
necessary or appropriate.

Comments

ltems i) & ii) are included in the
ECIDA Code of Ethics and Conflict of
Interest Policy. The Governance
Committee reviewed the Code of
Ethics and Conflict of Interest Policy,
during its 3/17/21 meeting. The Code
was re-adopted by the full Board
during its meeting on 3/24/21.

(iii) In 2012, the Governance
Committee approved a formal
Whistleblower Policy. The Committee
did not recommend any changes in
2021. The Policy was re-adopted by
the full Board during its meeting on
3/24/21.

iv) The ECIDA’s EEO policy is
included in the Employee Handbook
and the Procurement Policy.

v) The Committee reviewed
recommended changes to the
Procurement Policy during its 3/17/21
meeting. The amended Policy was
adopted by the full Board during its
meeting on 3/24/21.

vi) The ECIDA Property Disposition
Guidelines were reviewed by the
Governance Committee on 3/17/21
and re-adopted by the full Board
during its meeting on 3/24/21.

vii) The ECIDA Governance
Committee Charter was reviewed by
the Governance Committee on
3/17/21. It was re-adopted by the full
Board during its meeting on 3/24/21.

viii) At its 3/17/21 meeting the
Governance Committee reviewed
and recommended changes to the
ECIDA Employee Compensation
Program and adoption of the
Agency’s Sexual Harassment Policy.
Both policies were adopted by the full
Board during its meeting on 3/24/21.




Governance Committee Self-Evaluation Comments

X ] [] | The Committee reports its actions and
recommendations to the Board

10. Did the Governance Committee: .
following each meeting.

(i) report its actions and i) & ii) As stated above, all policies/
recommendations to the Board at each guidelines referenced above were
regular meeting of the Board following a adopted or re-adopted by the Board
meeting of the Governance Committee on 3/24/21.

and when otherwise requested by the

Board.

(i) report to the Board, at least annually,
regarding any proposed changes to this

Charter.

(i) provide a self-evaluation of the iii) On 3/17/21, the Committee
Governance Committee’s functions to the performed a Self-Evaluation for the
Board on an annual basis. calendar year 2020 and provided a

status report to the Board on 3/24/21.

89



Governance Committee Self-Evaluation
Other Self-Evaluation Notes
1) In March 2021, the Governance Committee reviewed the 2020 Board Evaluation for the ECIDA,

RDC, and ILDC boards. The Committee discussed the results of these evaluations during the
3/24/21 board meeting.

2) In addition to the above referenced policies, the Governance Committee discussed the following
items during its meeting on 3/17/21: (1) 2020 Performance Measures Report & Results; (2) 2021
Mission Statement & Performance Measures; (3) 2020 PAAA Annual Report; (4) Property
Acquisition Policy; (6) Defense & Indemnification Policy; (6) Board Member Compensation,
Reimbursement & Attendance Policy; (7) Travel Conferences Meals & Entertainment Policy; (8)
Statement of Duties & Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and (9) Statement of the
Competencies & Personal Attributes Required of Board Members. The Committee did not
recommend changes. The full Board approved these documents/policies during its 3/24/21
Board meeting.

3) The ECIDA staff provided an update on the status of the ECIDA’s Public Authority Reporting
Information System (PARIS) report to the Committee on 3/17/21.

4) During the Governance Committee meeting on 3/17/21, ECIDA staff reported that there were no
violations of the Agency’s Local Labor Policy in 2020.

5) During its 1/28/21, 2/9/21 and 3/17/21 Governance Committee meetings, the Governance
Committee, ECIDA staff and counsel discussed the results of ECIDA’s 2020 Performance
Measures.

6) During its 1/28/21, 2/9/21 and 3/17/21 Governance Committee meetings, the Governance
Committee, ECIDA staff and counsel discussed the ECIDA Mission Statement and 2021
Performance Measure.

90



ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
BUFFALO AND ERIE COUNTY INDUSTRIAL LAND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

PROJECT ADMINISTRATIVE FEE AND EXPENSE SCHEDULE

PRODUCT AGENCY/ILDC FEE AND DUE DATE
Sales Tax Benefit $1000 application fee
Mortgage Tax Benefit 1.25% of the total benefitted project amount
PILOT Benefit Due Date(s): 50% of fee due earlier of 60-days within date of approving

** Or any Project that receives a
PILOT Benefit

resolution, or issuance of Project Agreement, remaining 50% of fee due
upon earlier of inducement anniversary date, mortgage closing date, or
lease/leaseback transaction closing date

Sales Tax Benefit
Mortgage Tax Benefit

e $1,000 application fee
Fee equals the sum of (i) 1% on sales taxable component (50% of
construction budget plus amount of sales taxable materials and equipment)
and (ii) /2 of 1% on difference between mortgage benefit amount and sales
taxable component.

¢ Due Date(s): 50% due on date of issuance of the Project Agreement,
remaining 50% due upon earlier to occur of inducement anniversary date or
mortgage closing date

Sales Tax Benefit

e $1,000 application fee
1% of sales taxable component
¢ Due Date: Entire fee is due upon issuance of Project Agreement

Mortgage Tax Benefit

e $1000 application fee
e 50% of the Mortgage Tax Benefit amount
e Due Date: At mortgage closing

New Tax-Exempt Bond Issuance

$1,000 Application Fee
1% of bond amount
Due Date: Entire fee due at closing

Tax-Exempt Bond Refunding

$1,000 application fee
2 of 1% of refunded amount, plus 1% of new money amount, if any
Due Date: Entire fee due at closing

Additional Fees

The applicant is responsible for and shall pay all reasonable costs to the
Agency/ILDC, including without limitation, Agency/ILDC counsel fees,
incurred in connection with the Project including costs incurred in the following
instances:

e the project application is withdrawn at any time following submission

or after an initial inducement or bond resolution relating to the project
¢ the project expires without extension,
e the project does not close for any reason

Other

The Agency/ILDC President/CEQ, in consultation with the Agency/ILDC
Chair, is authorized to adjust/revise the aforementioned fee schedule on an
individual project by project basis for unique or otherwise outstanding projects.

** Affirmed and Adopted: March 23, 2022

21




Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”),
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC?”), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION, REIMBURSEMENT AND
ATTENDANCE POLICY

This Compensation, Reimbursement and Attendance Policy is adopted in accordance with
Section 2824 of the Public Authorities Law and applies to all directors of the Erie County
Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) and its affiliates: Buffalo and Erie County Regional
Development Corporation (RDC), Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land Development
Corporation (ILDC), and any other affiliated entities that may hereafter be established by ECIDA
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”) upon approval by the respective Boards of
each corporation.

Pursuant to and in accordance with Sections 856 and 891-a of the General Municipal Law of the
State of New York and this Policy, the members of the board of the Erie County Industrial -
Development Agency and its affiliates (the “Board”) shall serve without salary but may be
reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of Agency duties in accordance
with the Agency’s Travel, Conferences, Meals and Entertainment Policy. Reimbursements for
any expenses shall be reviewed and approved by the Board Chair. Provided, however, if the
Board Chair is seeking the reimbursement allowed herein then such reimbursement shall be
subject to the approval by the Chair of the Audit Committee.

The members of the Board shall be available as required to perform the operations of the Agency
and as set forth within the By-Laws of the Agency, as may be amended, restated or revised by
the Board from time to time. Said members of the Agency shall put forth their best efforts to
perform their respective duties as outlined in the By-Laws of the Agency and any other
directives of the Board relating to same.

Re-adopted this 23" day of March 2022 by the respective Boards of each corporation
referenced above.

92



Erie County Industrial Development Agency (“ECIDA”),
Buffalo and Erie County Regional Development Corporation
(“RDC”), and Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (“ILDC”)

CODE OF ETHICS & CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY

This Code of Ethics is adopted upon approval by the respective Boards of each
corporation in accordance with Section 2824 of the Public Authorities Law and applies to
all members, directors, committee members, officers and employees of the Erie County
Industrial Development Agency (ECIDA) and its affiliates: Buffalo and Erie County
Regional Development Corporation (RDC), Buffalo and Erie County Industrial Land
Development Corporation (ILDC) and any other affiliated entities that may hereafter be
established by ECIDA (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency”).

This Code of Ethics shall serve as a guide for official conduct and is intended to
enhance the ethical and professional performance of the Agency’s members, directors,
officers and employees and to preserve public confidence in the Agency’s mission.

ARTICLE I
Conflicts of Interest

A conflict of interest is a situation in which the financial, familial, or personal
interests of a member, director, officer or employee come into “actual” or “perceived”
conflict with their duties and responsibilities with the Agency.

“Perceived” conflicts of interest are situations where there is the appearance that a
member, director, officer or employee can personally benefit from actions or decisions
made in their official capacity, or where a member, director, officer or employee may be
influenced to act in a manner that does not represent the best interests of the Agency. The
perception of a conflict may occur if circumstances would suggest to a reasonable person
that a member, director, officer or employee may have a conflict.

“Actual” conflicts of interest are situations where a member, director, officer or
employee can personally benefit from actions or decisions made in their official capacity,
or where a member, director, officer or employee is influenced to act in a manner that does
not represent the best interests of the Agency.

. Except for Prohibited Conflicts of Interest as set forth in Article V herein, Perceived
and Actual conflicts of interest should be treated in the same manner for purposes of
disclosure under Article I'V herein.

93



ARTICLE 11
Standards of Conduct

1. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should accept
other employment which will impair their independence of judgment in the exercise of
their official duties.

2. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should accept
employment or engage in any business or professional activity which will require them to
disclose confidential information which they have gained by reason of their official
position or authority.

3. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should disclose
confidential information acquired by them in the course of their official duties nor use such
information to further their personal interests.

4. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should use or
attempt to use their official position to secure unwarranted privileges or exemptions for
themselves or others; provided, however, nothing herein shall prohibit any business or
enterprise in which such member, director, officer or employee may have a financial
interest from obtaining financial assistance provided that the Prohibited Conflicts of
Interest provisions of Article V herein are not violated.

5. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should engage in
any transaction as representative or agent of the Agency with any business entity in which
they have a direct or indirect financial interest that might reasonably tend to conflict with
the proper discharge of their official duties; provided, however, nothing herein shall
prohibit any business or enterprise in which such member, director, officer or employee
may have a financial interest from obtaining financial assistance provided that the
Prohibited Conflicts of Interest provisions of Article V herein are not violated.

6. No member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should by their
conduct give reasonable basis for the impression that any person can improperly influence
them or unduly enjoy their favor in the performance of their official duties, or that they are
affected by the kinship, rank, position or influence of any party or person.

7. Each member, director, officer and employee of the Agency should abstain
from making personal investments in enterprises which they have reason to believe may
be directly involved in decisions to be made by them or which will otherwise create
substantial conflict between their duty in the public interest and their private interest;
provided, however, nothing herein shall prohibit any business or enterprise in which such
member, director, officer or employee may have a financial interest from obtaining
financial assistance provided that the Prohibited Conflicts of Interest provisions of Article
V herein are not violated.

94



8. Each member, director, officer or employee of the Agency should endeavor
to pursue a course of conduct which will not raise suspicion among the public that they are
likely to be engaged in acts that are in violation of his or her trust.

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Article II to the contrary, nothing shall
prohibit any member, director, officer or employee of the Agency from acquiring property
adjacent to or otherwise proximate to the lands in which the Agency has an interest,
provided that such acquisition is not based upon the use of confidential information
obtained by such member, director, officer or employee of the Agency in his capacity with
the Agency as determined by such member, director, officer or employee after consultation
with the Ethics Officer and counsel to the Agency.

ARTICLE 11
Gifts

Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 805-a of the General Municipal Law,
no member, director, officer or employee of the Agency shall directly or indirectly, solicit
any gift, or accept or receive any gift having a value of seventy-five dollars or more under
circumstances in which it could reasonably be inferred that the gift was intended to
influence such individual, or could reasonably be expected to influence such individual, in
the performance of the individual’s official duties or was intended as a reward for any
official action on the individual’s part. Inferences that gifts having a value of less than
seventy-five dollars can influence or reward members, directors, officers or employees of
the Agency is deemed to be unreasonable.

ARTICLE IV
Procedures for Disclosing a Conflict of Interest

Except for Prohibited Conflicts of Interest as set forth in Article V below, all
members, directors, officers or employees of the Agency shall adhere to the following
procedures:

1. All members, directors, officers and employees shall examine their specific
facts and circumstances giving rise to the question of a conflict in order to determine:

(i)  whether such member, director, officer or employee can personally benefit
from the actions or decisions made in their official capacity (i.e. Actual
Conflict); or

(1)  whether a member, director, officer or employee is influenced to act in a
manner that does not represent the best interests of the Agency (i.e. Actual
Conflict); or

(iii) whether a reasonable person would conclude that such member, director,
officer or employee may have a conflict (i.e. Perceived Conflict). In
determining whether a reasonable person would conclude that there is a
conflict, such member, director, officer or employee must assess the

95



materiality within the context of the specific facts and circumstances.
Provided that the event giving rise to the question of a conflict is material
within the context of the specific facts and circumstances, then it would be
reasonable for a person to conclude that there may be a conflict.

2. All Actual and Perceived conflicts of interest shall be disclosed in writing
to the Ethics Officer as soon as practicable after learning of the Actual or Perceived conflict
of interest. The written disclosure must (i) identify the matter before the Agency, (ii)
identify the Standard of Conduct in question and (iii) contain sufficient facts and
circumstances in order to accurately convey the extent of the member’s, director’s,
officer’s or employee’s interest in such matter. In addition, in the event a member of the
board of directors of the Agency has a conflict, he or she shall verbally disclose the conflict
during a public session of a board meeting at which the matter creating the conflict appears
on the agenda. Such verbal disclosure shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting and
be made part of the public record.

3. The member, director, officer or employee with the conflict of interest shall
recuse themselves and refrain from participating in all discussions or decisions on the
matter creating the conflict. In addition, in the event a member of the board of directors of
the Agency has a conflict, he or she shall, in addition to the foregoing, abstain from voting
on such matter creating the conflict.

4, The member, director, officer or employee with the conflict of interest shall
refrain from directly or indirectly attempting to influence the discussions, decisions,
deliberations or vote on the matter giving rise to such conflict.

ARTICLE V
Prohibited Conflicts

General Municipal Law (“GML”) Article 18 regulates financial conflicts of interest
of members, directors, officers and employees of the Agency. Therefore, notwithstanding
any other provision contained in this Policy, financial conflicts of interest shall be governed
solely by this Article V.

Prohibition: No member, director, officer or employee shall have a direct or indirect
financial interest in a contract with the Agency where such member, director, officer or
employee has some form of control over the contract (“Prohibited Interest™).

No Cure: Disclosure, recusal, and abstention will not cure a Prohibited Interest. In
order to avoid a violation of a “Prohibited Interest” the contract may not be acted upon or
the member, director, officer or employee would have to resign.

Violations: Any member, director, officer or employee who is determined to have
“willfully and knowingly” violated the Prohibited Interest provisions of Article 18 of the
GML may be found guilty of a misdemeanor. In addition, the contract, if willfully entered
into, may be determined “null, void and wholly unenforceable”

96



Exceptions: Article 18 of the GML provides fifteen exceptions to the Prohibited
Interest provision. One of the more commonly claimed exceptions comes into play when
the member, director, officer or employees (“officials™) interest in the contract is prohibited
solely by reason of the official’s employment with the entity that has the contract with the
Agency. This exception applies provided: (a) the official’s compensation from the private
employer is not contingent upon the contract between the employer and the Agency and
(b) the official’s duties for the private employer do not directly involve the procurement,
preparation or performance of any part of the contract. [Note: This exception does not
cover an Agency official who is a director, partner, member, or shareholder of the private
employer]. The second most commonly claimed exception is where the official has an
interest in a contract that was entered into with the Agency prior to the time the official
was elected or appointed as such member, director, officer or employee of the Agency.
Provided, however, this exception does not authorize the renewal of any such contract.

Disclosure of Exception: Disclosure of Interest that falls within one of the
Exceptions: The official is required to publicly disclose the nature and extent of his or her
prospective, existing or subsequently acquired interest in any actual or proposed contract.
The disclosure must be made in writing and must be placed, in its entirety, in the official
record. The official must recuse him or herself from participating in any discussion or
action on the contract.

Notification of Potential Conflict due to a Financial Interest: Every member,
director, officer or employee shall immediately notify the Agency’s Ethics Officer of any
potential conflict of interest due to a direct or indirect financial interest in any matter
coming before the Agency where such member, director, officer or employee has the power
or duty to negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the matter before the Agency. The
Ethics Officer shall review the potential financial conflict of interest pursuant to the
provisions of Article 18 of the GML in consultation with Agency counsel.

ARTICLE VI
Penalties

Any employee that fails to comply with this Policy may be subject to termination.
In addition, any member, director, officer or employee that fails to comply with this Policy
may be penalized in a manner provided for in law.

_ARTICLE VII
Ethics Officer

The Agency’s Board shall designate an officer, member, director or employee of
the Agency to serve as the Ethics Officer of the Agency. In the event of a vacancy, the
Agency Board Chair shall serve as the Ethics Officer until such time as the Agency Board
appoints a successor.

The Ethics Officer shall report to the Board. The Ethics Officer shall have the
powers and duties set forth below, and such other powers and duties as may be prescribed
by the Board:

97



L. Adpvise in confidence each member, director, officer or employee of the
Agency who seeks guidance regarding ethical behavior and conflicts of interest.

2. Review matters concerning ethics and conflicts of interest and advise the
Agency accordingly.

3. Receive and record disclosures of conflicts of interest.

4. Receive and investigate complaints about possible violations of this Code

of Ethics. Dismiss complaints found to be without substance.
5. Report to the governance committee.

6. Prepare investigative reports when deemed appropriate of his or her
findings to be submitted for action by the President/CEO or the Board.

7. Seek consultation and guidance from counsel to the Agency, the Agency’s
governance committee, or any appropriate New York State agency.

ARTICLE VIII
Whistleblower Policy

In accordance with Title 12 of Article 9 of the Public Authorities Law, the Agency
adopted a Whistleblower Policy to afford certain protections to individuals who, in good
faith, report violations of the Agency’s Code of Ethics or other instances of potential
wrongdoing within the Agency. The Policy provides Agency members, directors, officers
and employees with a confidential means to report credible allegations of misconduct,
wrongdoing, or unethical behavior and to protect those individuals, when acting in good
faith, from personal or professional retaliation. The Policy is provided and is accessible to
all members, directors, officers and employees of the Agency and is reviewed annually by
the Agency’s Governance Committee. For additional information on this Policy, see
“